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Windar Photonics plc (AIM: WPHO), the technology group that has dewveloped its WindEye and WindTimizer LiDAR
wind sensors and its related 'Nexus' software suite designed to efficiently and cost effectively increase the power
output and reduce lifetime operating costs of electricity generating wind turbines, today announces its audited results
for the 12 months ended 31 December 2023. Following the successful, oversubscribed share placing at a premium in
April to raise £4.4m (before expenses) to support growth, the Company is pleased to give an update on current
trading and on its latest business development activities.

Highlights

Financial:

e Rewenue of €4.8m represents 157% growth on prior year revenue of €1.9m

o EBITDA (before share based payments) of €0.2m (2022: €0.8m loss) represents first year of positive EBITDA
in Company's history
Loss for the year narrowed to €0.2m (2022: €1.1m)
Basic loss per share: €0.003ps (2023: €0.019ps)
£4.4m (before expenses) raised in April 2024 through oversubscribed equity placing issued at a premium

EBITDA reduced from anticipated €0.4m predominantly as a result of the non-cash reclassification of an

operating lease as falling outside IFRS16
Operational:

o Significant order in April with a gross value of US$1.27m for delivery to the North American market

o Significant orders in February for a combined gross value of €1.3m to the Chinese market

e Launch of Windar Nexus software suite, adding further application and efficiencies for our customers
Current Trading & Sales Development Activity

e Rewenue for 6 months ending 30 June 2024 expected to be ¢.€2.3m, +70% YQOY

o Further orders received for H2 of €3.8m

e Order pipeline is increasingly strong

. Following the $1.27m order in April, we are now in discussion with several more US based operators of

similar scale owver orders for multiple turbine platforms
e We are in the advanced stages of potential new orders from China, Japan and Australia
o First 'Nexus' software platform installations expected in August 2024 with further value enhancing modules in
dewvelopment and testing

Outlook
With our sales and forward order book in June 2024 already reflecting over 125% of entire 2023 revenue, supported by
a strong and deweloping order pipeline, we hawe confidence in the growth of sales of WindEye and WindTimizer
hardware and, increasingly, of our Nexus software related senices. To date, our sales focus has been largely around
the Vestas V82 turbine platform, where there remains significant potential, but we are beginning to successfully test
and target sales on other turbine platforms, such as Senvion and GE, thereby further enhancing the Company's
prospects for future growth.

With a strong balance sheet, ongoing successful product development, increased manufacturing capacity and greater
supply chain resilience, the Board looks to the future with confidence.

For further information, please contact:
Windar Photonics plc
Gavin Manson
Tel: +45 24234930

WH Ireland Limited (Nomad & Broker)
Hugh Morgan / James Bauister / Isaac Hooper
Tel: +44 20 7220 1666

Notes to Editors:

Windar Photonics plc is a technology group that has deweloped Light Detection and Ranging ("LiDAR") optimisation
systems for use on electricity generating wind turbines. LiDAR wind sensors in general are designed to remotely
measure wind speed and direction.

Visit our website for further information: https://www.windarphotonics.com/


https://www.windarphotonics.com/

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMIENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Having delivered our second consecutive year of revenue growth of over 150% and the first positive EBITDA in the history
of the Company in 2023, and with sales and orders for 2024 already at 125% of 2023 revenue when we raised £4.4m through
an undiscounted capital raise in April 2024, the Company is well positioned to deliver its considerable potential.

Following the challenges in 2022 posed by the inpact of the pandenric on supply chains, 2023 proved to be an extremely positive and pivotal
year for the Corrpany. Our second successive year of sales growth in excess of 150% allowed the achieverrent of positive EBITDA
generation for the first time in the Corrpany's history. As inportantly, the sales momentumand pipeline established in the second half of 2023
gives confidence in our ability to maintain a sinilar trajectory of YOY sales growth with the resultant noverrent to significant profitability at
EBITDA and EFS level. This confidence allowed us to seek and raise the £4.4m (before expenses) equity issue conpleted in April 2024 -
providing not only the working capital and balance sheet strength necessary to move forward unconstrained by funding but also bringing
new institutional investors onto our share register.

Qur sales development and ability to raise capital has been facilitated by:

1. the continued development of our core physical LIDAR products for deployment across turbine platforms

2. development of our Nexus range of software products providing a platform for future development to enable data driven
performance improverrent for customers across individual turbines and entire wind farms

3. increasing conmercial validation of the economic benefits of inplementing our products through the now in excess of 1,000
systerrs deployed globally across turbine platforns in North Amrerica, Asia and Europe.

4. manufacturing process and capacity inprovements as production is scaled up with increased quality assurance and product
robustness

Qur active product development now means that the proven 3-4% turbine performance inprovement from installation of our WindEye and
WindTimizer products will increasingly become an entry level benefit with our Nexus software range providing the opportunity for
significantly enhanced turbine performance inproverrent, data driven maintenance planning and turbine life extension.

In April 2024 we were pleased to announce a €1.2m order merking a new relationship with a significant turbine operator in the North
Anerican merket. As well as providing the potential for meterial further orders this also marked the first revenue from sales of software
related services through our Nexus platform

These developments leave the Conpany with a very exciting opportunity to develop scale and value and the Board are committed to
delivering this value, as evidenced both through participation in the recent equity raise and in existing holdings.

During the year to 31 Decerrber 2023, revenue increased by over 150% from€1.9m to €4.8m With 67% of revenue coming in the final 5
nonths of the financial year, this growth denonstrates developing sales momentum- albeit influenced by the seasonally slower first quarter
for installations / invoicing due to weather conditions in Northern Henisphere wind farmlocations. Gross margins remaining at ¢50% provide
a solid base for targeted progression as we extend our global reach and increasingly develop softw are related sales.

Qur first positive financial year of positive BBITDA of €0.2m (before share-based payments) (2022: loss €0.8m) is a significant milestone,
w hich, combined with our current order book and strong sales pipeline, gives us confidence for the future.

The Group exited 2023 with cash balances of €0.2m influenced negatively by the concentration of sales late in the year and a resultant
reduction in deferred revenue of €1mdue to the timing of orders and scheduled deliveries.

With our strong order book conring into 2024 and the breakthrough €1.2morder fromthe new customer in North Anerica in April 2024 that
took our sales and forward order book for 2024 to €5.9m the Board sought to raise capital in order to ensure that the conpany's
development is unconstrained by working capital restriction, as well as provide the balance sheet strength necessary to develop new
custonrer relationships and increase supply chain resilience. We were delighted to be successful in raising £4.4m (before expenses)
through an equity placing at a prenmium share price of £0.35 - bringing in significant new institutional investors as well as individuals. The
pricing of the issue denonstrated investor confidence in the Corrpany's prospects and the Board is committed to ensuring that we deliver on
the full potential of both our hardw are and softw are products.

Board & Employees

Whilst the Group has developed significantly over the last 24 nonths, these have not been easy years for the Group's enployees and we
as a Board thank themfor their resilience and dedication through, first of all, the panderric, and then the challenges of rapid growth.

Having joined the Board as Chairmen in October 2023, |was pleased to welcome Gavin Manson to the Board as a Non-Executive Director in
February 2024. Gavin brings broad experience as a CFO of listed and developing conpanies and will bring focus on the development of
robust financial and operational processes to support our targeted growth.

The Board and enployees of Windar w ere shocked and greatly saddened by the sudden and unexpected passing of Johan Blach Petersen,
my predecessor as Chairman, in April 2024. Johan was instrumental in the development of Windar over many years and his contribution
was a significant factor in seeing the company through sone difficult times on the way to our successful 2023 and the Conpany's current
strong position. He will be greatly missed.

Outlook

With our sales and forward order book in June 2024 already reflecting over 125% of entire 2023 revenue, supported by a strong and
developing order pipeline, we have confidence in the growth of sales of WindEye and WindTinizer hardware, and increasingly, of our
Nexus software related services. To date, our sales focus has been largely around the Vestas V82 turbine platform where there stil
remeins significant potential, but we are beginning to successfully test and target sales on other turbine platforms, such as Senvion and GE
thereby hugely increasing the Conpany's prospects for future growth.

With a strong balance sheet, ongoing successful product development, increased manufacturing capacity and greater supply chain
resilience, the Board looks to the future with confidence.

David George Lis
Chairman



STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023
The Directors present their Strategic Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 Decenber 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP

Windar Photonics is a technology Group that has developed LIDARwind sensors and a related softw are suite designed to efficiently and
cost effectively increase the power output and reduce the lifetime operating costs of electricity generating wind turbines. LIDAR wind
sensors in general are designed to renotely measure wind speed and direction.

The Group's key physical products are the WIndEYE™ and WindVISION™ sensors which measure the wind speed at different
measuring points by scanning a laser beam ahead of the wind turbine. By measuring the wind speed a variety of wind information is
derived such as wind direction, turbulence, wind shear, wind gust and wake detection. The products and various algorithns are
designed for the general optimisation of wind turbines both in respect of increasing the Annual Energy Production and general load
reduction options.

The Group has recently developed and inplemented the first phase of its Nexus software platform to support the data driven
managenent of the inprovement of performance of individual wind turbines and in future turbine farmns.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The Chairman's Staterrent includes a general review of the Group's business for the year.

FUTURE DEVEL.OPMENTS IN THE BUSINESS

Independent Power Producers (IPPs) and Wind Park Operators are primarily interested in general optimisation of existing wind turbines
thereby potentially increasing power output. One method of achieving this is by optimisation of the yaw alignment of the wind turbine,
meaning that the wind turbine is better facing the wind. This can be obtained by fitting a LIDAR wind sensor such as the VAndEYE™
sensor. Windar's sales progress in 2023 marked a breakthrough year for the Group and this has again seen transformational
development through a significant new custorrer relationship in North America. In April 2024 we signed a significant €1.2m order with
this North Anrerican client as a first stage in addressing the substantial opportunity.

As well as including the sale of a nurrber of WindVISION sensors the North Amrerican order also marked the first revenue fromservices
related to our Nexus software platform This platform will increasingly be the foundation for future developments in the provision of
enhanced services giving clients with our VindEYE and WindVISION products the opportunity to realise performance improvenents
beyond the core wind alignment benefits frominstallation of our hardw are. The data and benefits from utilising current and future Nexus
software nodules will optimise alignment, operating hours, planned maintenance and operating life of individual turbines as well as
incremrental benefits fromthe consolidation of data and response across wind farrs.

GROUP RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

In the year ended 31 Decenrber 2023, Windar Photonics achieved revenue of €4.8 illion (2022; €1.9 million) from sales of WWindEYE™
and WindVISIONM™ sensors and related services which represent a revenue increase of 157% from 2022. The total gross profit for the
year anmounted to €2.4 nillion (2022; €0.9 million) representing an increase of 154% fromthe prior year.

The Group loss for the year before taxation and exceptional expenses decreased to €0.35 illion (2022: €1.3 million).

No dividends are payable for the year under review (2022: No dividends payable).
CARTAL INCREASE

Following the period end, in April 2024, the Group raised £4.4m (before expenses) of capital through the issue of 12,631,426 Ordinary
Shares at an undiscounted price of 35p per share. The Capital was raised in order to provide the Group with the working capital
necessary to satisfy demand for its products and increased balance sheet strength.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Sales cycle and product acceptance

As with many large projects the successful addition of a client and the successful installation of the Group's product for a potential client
can entail a long sales cycle, which often also involves protracted negotiations and meeting detailed technical specifications and
requiremrents, the length of which may adversely affect the Group's financial situation and cash flow and increase project costs.
Furthermore, there can be no guarantee that the commencenrent of such negotiations will result in successful addition of a client and, as
such, significant time may be spent, and expense may be incurred without return for the Group.

As the Group increases its presence in the market and is undertaking projects with IPP, Wind Farm Operators and OBV the sales cycle
risk is reduced, as there are more potential clients, and the non-conversion of any potential client is less of a risk to the business. As the
Group continues to grow this risk will becorme a normal trading risk.

Products and services failure

Quality is critical to the Group's business solution. While the Group's technology is conplete and extensive security and scalability testing
has been carried out, a major systemdefect, due to design mistake or technology failure could impact upon current and future customer
demand. This may lead to adverse press and market commrentary

dameging the reputation of the Group, and require rectification costs and/or claims against the Group. Further, all sales mede by the
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mede under such warranties and the Group has worked with its custormers to enhance the installations on site to date but there can be
no assurance that the Group will not incur significant liabilities in satisfying warranty clains in the future.

The Group has not had to initiate a product recall. However, it may be exposed to product recalls if its products are faulty or if
regulations are breached. If the Group has to recall products, it may incur significant and unexpected costs and danmege to its reputation.
The Group has inplemmented quality control procedures to nitigate this risk.

Reliance on suppliers

The substantial part of subconponents that are assenbled into the VAndEYE™ and WindVision™ sensors are manufactured and
supplied by third parties. It may be difficult to replace any of these subconponents if there was an interruption in the supply,
consistency, quality or timely delivery or an increase in costs above the forecast levels, which could adversely affect the Group's
operating results or harmits reputation. Any such interruption where the Group is unable to locate and engage an alternative within a
reasonable time and at an acceptable cost may result in the Group being unable to offer its services or products or a material interruption
in the provisions of its services or products, w hich in turn may have a material adverse effect on the Group's business and prospects.

Other commercial factors

The Group is still in an early business cycle stage and now entering the next higher growth cycle means that the Group will be exposed
to a higher concentration of single custormers and/or contracts. In 2023 this was illustrated by the fact that 2 custormers accounted for
55% of the annual Group revenue (2022: 2 custorrers, 64%). New orders received post the period end are expected to significantly
reduce concentration in 2024 and beyond. The Group is aware and is paying attention to the potential commercial risk this developrment
brings. One of the ways to mitigate this risk going forward is to continue to focus strongly on both ongoing, but just as inportant, new
OBEMprojects with the view over time to developing a broader custorrer base.

Being in an early business cycle the Group has been dependent on financing the business through placing of shares in the market
primarily to finance annual losses generated in the Group. The Group is aware of the risks associated with being dependent on such
capital sources. The focus in the Group to nitigate this risk is to arrive at a position where any potential future share placings primarily
will be needed for financing of working capital and not financing of annual losses. Following the April 2024 share issue, no further
issues are anticipated.

Reliance on key personnel

The Conpany's future success is substantially dependent on the Group's ability to attract, train, notivate and retain key management,
commercial and technical personnel with the necessary skills and experience. There is no guarantee that the Group will be successful in
attracting and/or retaining key personnel. The loss of any of these key personnel for whatever reason may have a material adverse
effect on the future of the Corrpany's business.

Confidentiality

In order to protect its proprietary technology and processes, the Group relies on confidentiality agreements with enployees, licensees,
independent contractors and other third parties. These agreements may not effectively prevent disclosure of confidential information and
may not provide an adequate remedy in the event of disclosure of confidential information. Costly and time-consuning litigation could be
necessary to enforce and determine the scope of the Group's proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or meintain trade secret protection
could adversely affect the Group's conpetitive business position.

SECTION 172 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

The Directors are well aware of their duty under Section.172 of the Conpanies Act 2006 to act in the way which they consider, in good
faith, would be most likely to pronote the success of the Conpany for the benefit of its merrbers as a whole and, in doing so, to have
regard (amongst other metters) to:

« the likely consequences of any decision in the long ternm

« the interests of the Conpany's enployees;

« the need to foster the Corrpany's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

« the inmpact of the Conpany's operations on the community and the environment;

« the desirability of the Company meintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
« the need to act fairly betw een merrbers of the Corrpany.

The Board recognises that the long-term success of the Group requires positive interaction with its stakeholders. Positive engagement
with stakeholders will enable our stakeholders to better understand the activities, needs and challenges of the business and enable the
Board to better understand and address relevant stakeholder views which will assist the Board in its decision making and to discharge

its duties under Section 172 of the Conrpanies Act 2006. The comprehensive interaction with stakeholder incorporates among others
regulatory announcenents as well as direct conmrunication betw een Shareholders and the Board.

In Windar Photonics, we set an honour in building long-term corporate relationships, with both suppliers, customers and development
partnerships, which has been an essential part, since the incorporation of the Group and is still today a fundamental part of our
progress.

One of the biggest assets in Windar Photonics FLCis our teammenrbers. Their hard work and personal conmitrrent are highly valued
and is the cornerstone for the continued positive future journey for the Group. We will continue to ensure the well-being, enbraces their
anbitions and enpow er them as an essential part of our Group.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group considers the revenue, the EBITDA development, cash balances, levels of debt, and enployee nunbers as the current key
performance indicators of the business as it has been in a start-up phase.

Revenue for the year was €4.8 million (2022: €1.9 nillion) representing an increase of 157% and Gross Rrofit showed an increase of
154%.

EBITDA gain, representing the loss fromoperations and adding back the depreciation and anortisation charges of €0.2 million (2022: €0.2
nillion), amounted to €0.1 million (2022 loss: €0.8 million).

At 31 Decenrber 2023 the Group had cash balances of €0.2 million (2022: €1.4 million).
Trade receivables at the end of the year increased to €0.5 million (2022: €0.4 million).

The Group's loans at 31 Decerrber 2023 anmount to €1.8 million (2022: €1.9 nrillion) of w hich €0.5 million (2022: €0.2 million) is classified as
current.

Enployee nunbers at 31 Decenrber 2023 were 29 (2022: 23).

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD ON JUNE 29, 2024



JUIYET 1 NUISYddl U Jer ISer 1

Director

DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The Directors present their report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decenrber 2023.
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The future developments for the Group are discussed in the Chairman's Statement and the Strategic Report.
GROUP RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group results and dividends are shown in the Strategic Report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Conrpany during the year were:

Jargen Korsgaard Jensen

Johan Blach Petersen (resigned on 9 April 2024)
Paul Joseph Hodges

Andrew John Richardson

David George Lis (appointed on 6 October 2023)

Gavin Mexw ell Manson was appointed on 14 February 2024.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

As at 31 Decenrber 2023 As at 26 June 2024

Ordinary Per cent Warrants Ordinary Per cent Warrants

Shares Shares
Jargen Korsg_a:_ard J_en_sen
(she‘zdbem ;Das'”'ka Limited. 5 649,864 8.3% - 5,649,864 7.0% -
David George Lis 337,500 0.5% - 1,826,071 2.2% -
Paul Joseph Hodges 2,125,318 3.1% - 3,545,318 4.4% -
Johan Blach Petersen 1,882,841 2.8% - 1,882,841 2.3% -
Andrew John Richardson - - - 50,000 0.1% -
Gavin Manson - - - 428,571 0.5% -
SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders who have netified the conpany of shareholdings in excess of 3% as at 31 Decenrber 2023 and at 26 June 2024 are as
follows:

As at 31 Decenrber 2023 As at 26 June 2024
Nurrber of Percentage Nurmber of ~ Percentage

ordinary shares ordinary shares
Pasinika Lirrited 5,649,864 8.3 5,649,864 70
Paul Joseph Hodges 2,125,318 31 3,545,318 44
Danmerks Tekniske Universitet 2,352,990 34 2,352,990 29
Miton Holding Horsens A/S 2,119,400 31 2,119,400 26

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHES
David George Lis (Non-Bxecutive Chairman), aged 74

David George Lis is an experienced non-executive director within investment and fund managerent. David joined Norwich Union
Investrment Management in 1997 (later merging to form Aviva Investors), before becoming Head of Equities in 2012 and latterly Chief
Investrment Officer, Equities and Multi Assets, until his retirement in March 2016. David is currently the Chairman of WildLife Group Limited,
the Senior Independent Director of Melrose Industries plc and Hostrmore Fc and a Non-Executive Director of Dow gate Capital Linrited. He
has previously held the position of Senior Independent Director of Hectra Private Equity pic as well as being a non-executive director of
BCA Marketplace plc and the Multifammily Housing REIT plc.

Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen (Chief Executive Officer and Founder), aged 61

Jargen Korsgaard Jensen is an expert in optical technology solutions and has been involved in Research & Development projects in the
field of optical technology in collaboration with the Danish Technical University, DTU for more than twenty years. Prior to that he held
leading positions in international companies with responsibilities for strategy, finance, purchasing and logistics. He is the chief executive
and founder of OPDI Technologies A/S, which is a technology incubator conpany focused on developrment of opto/electronic sensors
primarily for consumer electronic products.

Further, he is chief executive of WaveTouch Group Linited, w hich develops and markets optical touch screen technologies.

The businesses of Windar Photonics and WaveTouch Group Linited were both initially created by, and are derived from businesses
within OPDI Technologies A/S.

Paul Joseph Hodges, aged 64



Paul Joseph Hodges has had a career in the Gty of London, spanning 40 years, as an investment analyst, stockbroker and corporate
financier. During this period, Paul has held prominent roles at S G Warburg, James Capel, Schroder Securities, Collins Stewart and
Cenkos plc. Paul was a founding partner of Cenkos, a main board director and a central figure in the firnds landmark deals. He now acts
as an independent consultant. Paul has a B.Sc(Econonics) degree in Econometrics from the London School of Econorrics and a MSc
degree in Management Science from Inperial College, London.

Andrew John Richardson, aged 59

Andy is a non-executive chairman, director and board advisor who helps businesses to achieve success. Andy has a wealth of
expertise across a range of organisations at CEO, Chair and non-executive levels, including having been Chairman of Rubicon Partners
Industries, CEO of Arc Specialist Engineering Limted and CEO of Metalrax Group Hc. He has a strong track record in business
transformetion, scale-up and international development in quoted, private equity and family office ownership structures. He has a
denonstrated history of success internationally in the manufacturing sector including Autonotive, FMOG, Medical Devices, Aerospace,
Off-Hghway, Engines, Consumer Products, Safety Products, Building Products. Andy was educated at Canbridge University holding
two degrees, MA. and MEng. Andy loves helping people to succeed.

Gavin Maxwell Manson, aged 58
Gavin Manson is an experienced non-executive director and CFO. He is currently CFO of agriculture and engineering group Carr's Group
plc and is a Non-Executive Director of healthcare group Meallnore Ltd. He was previously Chairman of Hostnore plc and between 2016

and 2022 was Chief Financial and Operating Officer of Hectra Private Equity PLC having previously held senior finance positions in a
nurrber of listed commpanies including Thomas Cook Group plc, Premier Farnell plc and Merck KGaA.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The value of all elemrents of remuneration received by each Director in the year was as follows:

Wages and Fees  Fair value Total
salaries of warrant
costs
€ € € €

Year ended 31 December 2023
Executive Directors
Jargen Korsgaard Jensen - - - -
Non-execttive Directors
Johan Blach Petersen - - - -
David George Lis - 24,494 - 24,494
Paul Joseph Hodges - 28,350 - 28,350
Andrew John Richardson - 26,933 - 26,933
Total - 79,777 - 79,777
Year ended 31 December 2022
Executive Directors
Jargen Korsgaard Jensen - - - -
Non-execttive Directors
Johan Blach Petersen - 13,500 - 13,500
Paul Joseph Hodges - 28,350 - 28,350
Andrew John Richardson - - - -
Total - 41,850 - 41,850

QUALIFYING THRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS
The Conpany has put in place qualifying third party indermity provisions for all of the directors of Windar Photonics Fc.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Currency

The Group reports its revenues and costs in €, whilst some of these revenues and costs may arise in currencies other than this
including, inter alia US Dollars, Pounds Sterling, Chinese Yuan and Danish Krone. As a result, the Group is exposed to risks associated
with fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, which may adversely affect the Group's reported profits or meke its overseas
contracts relatively less valuable. In particular, custommers are invoiced in their local currency rate, which may in the future give rise to
material currency exposure risks. The Group does not currently engage in any currency hedging although as the business expands and
foreign currency exposure increases the Group will consider options to mritigate the exposure to foreign currency movenments.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its debt
instruments. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due. To achieve
this aim the Group finances its operations through a nix of equity and borrowings. The Group's objective is to provide funding for future
growth and achieve a balance betw een continuity and flexibility through its bank facilities and future intergroup loans.

The Board receives cash flow projections on a regular basis as well as information regarding cash balances. At the end of the financial
year these projections indicated that the Group is expected to have sufficient liquid resources for a period of at least tw elve months from
the date of signing of these financial statements, to meet its obligations. Accordingly, the Board has adopted the going concern basis.

See note 3 for further details.

CREDIT RSK

The Group regularly reviews and assesses the trade receivables for impairment and considers the market risk in respect of the trade
receivables. As the Group trades with a concentrated nunber of customers the Group has review ed trade receivables on an individual
basis. The Group has made a provision against overdue trade receivables of € NI (2022: € Nil). The Group considers the followings
events as indicators of an inpairment:



o  default of payments of the counterparty;

« financial difficulties of the counterparty;

« it's beconring probable that the counterparty enters bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

« granting to the counterparty a concession that the Group will not otherwise consider.
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

The Group is committed to enrployee involverrent in the business and there are consultative procedures available for management and
other enployees to discuss metters of mutual interest.

The Group has a policy of non-discrimination in respect of sex, colour, religion, race, nationality or ethnic origin and the recruitrent of
disabled persons is only subject to any overriding consideration of access and safety.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted formal treasury policies to contral its financial instruments. It is a Group Treasury policy not to undertake
transactions of a speculative nature. Group cash flows are managed centrally and surplus cash is invested in short-term financial
instruments.

Corrpliance with these policies is nonitored by the Board.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group continues to undertake R8D into LIDAR technology. During the year the Group spent €1,517,237 (2022: €994,713) on R8D of
w hich €493,436 (2022: €311,262) has been capitalised as an intangible asset as shown in note 17 to the financial staterrents.

The Group has received public Research and Development Grants of €165,223 (2022: €121,019) in respect of the capitalised research
and development. At the end of the year, 2 development projects are ongoing w hich are supported by public Research and Developrent
Grants and outstanding grants w hich can be claimed in the comring two years anount to €51,127 (2022: €209,754).

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Director's Report, the Corporate Governance Staterment and the
financial statemments in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Corrpany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to
prepare the Group and conpany financial statements in accordance UK-adopted international accounting standards ("IFRS"). Under
comrpany law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. The directors are also required to
prepare financial staterrents in accordance with the rules of the London Stock Exchange for conpanies trading securities on the
Alternative Investment Market.

In preparing these financial staterents, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply themconsistently;

. meke judgements and accounting estimetes that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether the Group and Parent Conpany financial statemments have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the United Kingdom subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the conpany will continue in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Conpany's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Conrpany and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements conply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and Corrpany and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
staterents are published on the Group's website in accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The meintenance and integrity of the
conpany's website is the responsibility of the directors. The directors' responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial
staterents contained therein.

AUDIT INFORMATION

The directors who were in office on the date of approval of these financial staterments have confirmed, as far as they are aware, there
is no relevant audit information of w hich the Group's auditor is unaware.

Each of the directors have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make
thenselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

AUDITORS
A resolution to re-appoint Gravita Audit Linted as the Conpany's Auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD ON JUNE 29, 2024

Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen

Director



The Group has elected to follow the QCA guidelines in respect of Corporate Governance, which is also published on the Conpany's
website.

In cormmon with other organisations of a similar size, the Bxecutive Director is heavily involved in the day-to-day running of the business.
The Board of Directors meets regularly and is responsible for formulating strategy, and for the trading subsidiaries, monitoring financial
performance and approving mejor itens of capital expenditure. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Conpany
Secretary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board includes a minimumof three Non-Executive Directors. The Board has scheduled meetings every second nonth for each year
and others as required. The Board retains full responsibility for the direction and control of the Group. No strategic powers have been
delegated and for these reasons the Board did not have, during the year, a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it.

There is currently no formal agreed procedure for Directors in the furtherance of their duties to take independent professional advice as
necessary at the Conpany's expense.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The appointrent of Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the Board as a whole based on recommrendations from the Nominations
Conmittee. Although recommended by the Code, there is currently no formal selection process. The Non-Executive Directors have
contracts for services for an unspecified period. Non-Executive Directors are subject to re-election every three years.

Terms and conditions of appointrrent of the Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection.

EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS

Directors are appointed by the Board of Directors but stand for election by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The
Executive Directors are subject to re-election every three years.

The Conpany holds board meetings regularly throughout the year. Seven scheduled board meetings were held during the year, as well
as one audit conmittee meeting, one remuneration committee meeting and one nomination committee meeting. Attendance by board
menbers is shown below.

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee

Number of meetings held 7 1 1 1
Executive board members
Jargen Korsgaard Jensen 7 NA NA NA
Non-executive board
members
Johan Blach Petersen 7 1 1 1
Paul Joseph Hodges 7 1 1 1
Andrew John Richardson 7 1 1 1
David George Lis 1 0 0 0

In the event that Board approval is required between Board meetings, Board merrbers are emrailed the details, including supporting
information in order to make a decision. The decision of each Board menber is communicated and recorded at the following Board
meeting. Board menrbers are aware of the time commitment required w hen joining the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

During the year to 31 Decenber 2023, the Audit Comnittee conprised Johan Blach Petersen, Paul Joseph Hodges and Andrew John
Richardson and was chaired by Johan Blach Petersen. Andrew John Richardson now chairs the Comrittee. The Audit Conrittee meets
at least once a year and is responsible for reviewing the annual and half-yearly financial staterrents, the systemof internal controls and
risk management, and the terms of appointment and renuneration of the auditor. It is also the forumthrough which the auditor reports to
the Board. The Audit Conmittee is also responsible for reviewing the objectivity of the external auditor and the terms under which the
external auditor is appointed to performnon-audit services.

The Group's auditor also attends the Audit Committee at its request and reports on its work procedures, the quality and effectiveness of
the Group's accounting records and its findings in relation to the Group's statutory audit. The Audit Conmittee will meet with the auditor at
least once a year.

During the year the committee worked with the Group auditors, on the findings of the 2022s audit as well as reviewing the conpany's full
year results on behalf of the Board. It considered significant accounting policies, ensured conrpliance with accounting standards and
considered reports from the external auditor on accounting topics of a judgemental nature requiring attention. The Comittee, where
necessary will have had separate discussions with the auditor without management being present on the adequacy of controls and any
judgenmental areas, as well as feedback on the audit.

Nomination Committee

The Nomrination Conmittee conrprises David George Lis, (Johan Blach Petersen prior to the appointment of David George Lis), Andrew
John Richardson and Paul Joseph Hodges and is chaired by David George Lis. It meets at least once a year and otherwise as required.
The Nomination Conmittee considers the conposition of the Board, retirements and appointrrents of additional and replacemrent directors
and makes appropriate recommendations to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Rerruneration Committee conprises Andrew John Richardson, Paul Joseph Hodges and Gavin Maxwell Manson (from his
appointment on 14t February 2024) and is chaired by Paul Joseph Hodges. It neets at least once a year and is responsible for
reviewing the scale and structure of the executive directors' remuneration and the terms of their service or enployment contracts,
including any share options granted and other bonus arrangements. The remuneration and terms and conditions of the Non-Executive
Directors are set by the entire Board.

The rermuneration conrittee has decided that the Executive Director should receive remuneration from 18t January 2024.
The Non-Executive Directors were aw arded remuneration for their services during the year.

During the year no granted share options lapsed and 2,256,956 new share options were granted during the year.



PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

There is currently no formal performance evaluation of the board, its committees, and its individual directors. A modus operandi for the
evaluation of the board is currently under consideration, but not inplemented at the current stage of the Group's developrrent, as the
Group is still a fairly young and siall business unit.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors are available to shareholders at any time to discuss strategy and governance matters.

In addition, all Group announcements are published on the Group's website, together with financial results.

All shareholders have the opportunity to ask questions and express their views at the Conpany's Annual General Meeting, at which all
Directors are available to take questions.

AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The primery role of the Audit Committee is to keep under review the Group's financial systems and controls and its financial reporting
procedures. In fuffilling this role, the Conrittee receive and review work carried out by the external auditors and their findings.

The Board has overall responsibility for operating and nonitoring the system of internal control within the Group and for nonitoring its
effectiveness. The systemincludes an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant business risks. Although no
system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against meterial msstatement or loss, the Group's systemis designed to
provide the directors with reasonable assurance that any material problens are identified on a timely basis and dealt with appropriately.

Guidance to Directors of UK Conrpanies on internal control procedures and good practice on risk management is provided by the
Financial Reporting Council.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal controls on an annual basis on behalf of the Board and considers that
they conply throughout the year ended 31 Decerrber 2023 with those provisions of the Code w hich they consider to be practicable and
appropriate for a relatively small public conpany.

The key elements of the system which are designed to meet the specific needs and business risks of the Group, include:
e clearly defined organisation structures with segregation of duties wherever practicable;
o agreement of Group short termfinancial objectives and business plans;
e quarterly review by the Board of Group management accounts and nonitoring of results against budgets;
«  Board control over treasury, taxation, legal, insurance and personnel issues;
«  Board control over appraisal, review and authorisation of capital expenditure.

In conmon with organisations of similar size the Executive Director is heavily involved in the day to day running of the business. The
directors believe that although the Group's controls may be slightly less formal than those of larger groups, the close involvenent of the
Executive Directors more than conpensates for this.

The Board believes that it is not currently appropriate for the Group to maintain an internal audit function because of the small size of the
Group.

The Audit Committee considers the independence and objectivity of the external auditor on an annual basis, with particular regard to non-
audit services. The split between audit and non-audit fees for the year and information on the nature of the non-audit fees appear in
note 9 to the financial statements. The non-audit fees are considered by the Committee not to affect the independence or objectivity of
the auditor. The Audit Committee nonitors such costs in the context of the audit fee for the year, ensuring that the value of non-audit
services does not increase to a level where it could affect the auditor's objectivity and independence. The Audit Committee also received
an annual confirmation of independence fromthe auditor.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statemments. Further
expansive description can be found in Note 3.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMIENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Windar Photonics plc - QCA Code

As Chairman of the Board of Directors of Windar Photonics pic ("Windar Photonics", "the Conpany” or "the Group" as the context
requires), it is my responsibility to ensure that the Conrpany has both sound corporate governance and an effective Board.

As Chairman, my responsibilities include leading the Board effectively, overseeing the Oon'Fany's corporate governance nodel,
comrunicating with shareholders, and ensuring that good information flows freely between the Executive Directors and the Non-
Executive Directors in a timely and efficient manner.

In line with the AIM Rules, w hich require all AIMHisted conpanies to adopt and conply with a cor?orate overnance code, the Board of
Windar Photonics pic has adopted the Quoted Conpanies Alliance Corporate Governance Code (the " Code").

The QCA Code states that "the purpose of good corporate governance is to ensure that the conpany is managed in an efficient,
effective and entrepreneurial manner for the benefit of all shareholders over the longer term”

It is the Board's responsibility to ensure that Windar Photonics plc is managed in the long-term interests of all shareholders and
stakeholders in the business.

The Board believes a strong and effective corporate governance culture is critical in this respect as we endeavor to grow a resilient
and sustainable business for the benefit of our shareholders and all stakeholders.

The Board considers that the Group corrplies with the QCA Code so far as it is practicable having regard to the size, nature and
current stage of development of the Corrpany, and will disclose any areas of material non-conpliance.

The QCA code is constructed around 10 broad principles and the report below sets out how we conply with the code at this time.
Corrpliance with the code will be review ed and updated annually.



David George Lis

Chairman

QCA Code Frinciple

What we do and why

1. Establish a strategy and
business model which promotes
long- term value for shareholders

The board must be able to express a
shared view of the company’s purpose,
business model and strategy. It should
go beyond the simple description of
products and corporate structures and
set out howthe company intends to
deliver shareholder value in the
medium to long-term. It should
demonstrate that the delivery of long-
term growth is underpinned by a clear
set of values aimed at protecting the
company from unnecessary risk and
securing its long-term future.

Windar Photonics' primary vision is to be, and remain, the leading global supplier
of nacelle LIDAR equipment for both the wind turbine OBVland retrofit markets.

Windar's core strategy for achieving the vision is focused on the following core
corrponents:
o Competitiveness
¢ Innovative technology
o Cost-effective operation of the company
e Power enhancement and cost reduction for
the end user.

The OBMmarket is serviced directly by Windar Photonics, whereas the retrofit
market is serviced through an external global dealership that provides Windar
Photonics products to local Independent Pow er Producers (IPPs) and wind farm
operators.

The conrpany's strategy and key challenges are detailed on pp. 5-6 and pp. 10-15
of the Report of the Directors and Consolidated Financial Statements (For the
year ended 31 Decenber 2023).

2. Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and
expectations

Directors must develop a good
understanding of the needs and
expectations of all elements of the
company's shareholder base.

The board must manage
shareholders' expectations and
should seek to understand the
motivations behind shareholder
voting decisions.

The Board is committed to clearly navigating the corrpany towards substantial
growth and to ensure that the shareholder's expectations are met in this regard.

Windar Photonics encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and private investors. Windar Photonics endeavors to respond swiftly to all
queries received fromits investors. The conpany's CEO s regularly in contact
with the Group's institutional and retail shareholders and ensures that their
views and concerns are communicated clearly to the Board. The Conpany also
seeks to manage shareholder expectations through its regulatory disclosures.

The Board recognises the AGMas an inportant opportunity to meet private
shareholders, and the Directors are available to listen to the views expressed by
:talzlac/lorrpany's shareholders in an informal context immediately following the

The AGMinvariably includes an update by the Chief Executive Officer and
others on developments w hich have occurred since the Annual Report went to
press.

Where voting decisions are not in line with the conpany's
expectations, the Board will engage with those shareholders to understand and
address any issues.

The key point of contact for all shareholders is Chief Executive Officer, Jargen
Korsgaard Jensen, w ho can be contacted at jk@w indarphotonics.com

3. Take into account wider
stakeholder and social
responsibilities and their
implications for long-term success

Long-term success relies upon
relations with a range of different
stakeholder groups both internal
(workforce) and external (suppliers,
customers, regulators and others). The
board needs to identify the company’s
stakeholders and understand their
needs, interests and expectations.

Where matters that relate to the
company's impact on society, the
communities within which it operates
or the environment have the potential
to affect the company’s ability to
deliver shareholder value over the
medium to long-term, then those

mafttars miist he intearated into

Windar Photonics is committed to sustainability and progress in all aspects of
our business - for the environment, custorrers, suppliers and the communities
we operate in.

This is evidenced and underpinned by our vision and values:

1. Custorrers - Grow profitable sales
2. Quality - Operational excellence

3. Environment - Conmrunity impact

4. Innovation - Excellent product design
5.  TeamWork - Engage our people

Sustainability is essentially the foundation of Windar Photonics, as the
corrpany's overall business is to provide the market a commercially viable means
of enhancing the production and effectiveness of renewable wind energy
assets, which in turn contributes to increasing the econorric viability and
sustainability of the renew able energy sector. Windar Photonics via its global
dealership, contributes to increasing the conpetitiveness of the emerging wind
energy sector.

Windar Photonics is based in United Kinadomand Denmark, and the conpany
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the company’s strategy and

business model.

Feedback is an essential part of all
control mechanisms. Systems need to
be in place to solicit, consider and act
on feedback from all stakeholder
groups.

conforms to the local law's and standards for social responsibilities in relation to
the conpany's enployees. Windar Photonics encourages an open dialogue with its
enployees and conduct individual enployee consultations, to attain feedback on all
aspects of enployment with Windar Photonics. Furthermore, enployee
representatives meet in forurs to discuss business related issues.

Windar Photonics encourages custorrers feedback through trade account
managers and direct engagement with individual custorrers via customer
service teams and social media conmrunication, such as Linkedin.

4. Embed effective risk management,
considering both opportunities and
threats, throughout the organization

The board needs to ensure that the
company’s risk management
framewvork identifies and addresses
all relevant risks in order to execute
and deliver strategy; the company
needs to

consider its extended business,
including the supply chain, from key
suppliers to end- customers.

Setting strategy includes
determining the extent of exposure
to the identified risks that the
company is able to bear and willing
to take (risk tolerance and risk

appetite).

A detailed analysis of the risks faced by the con'pag%/, and the measures taken to
minimise the identified risks, are detailed on pp. 6-7 of the Strategic Report and
Report of the Directors (for the year ended 31 Decenrber 2023), along with an
assessment of any changes to the potential risks during the previous reporting
period. The Corrpany formally reviews and docurrents the principal risks to the
business at least annually. Likewise, the executive directors have agreed to act
with risk- prevention in mind during the daily operation of the conrpany.

The board is responsible for evaluating potential risks and meets regularly to
identify and review risks in relation to the ongoing trading, and the conpany's
budgets and forecasts. Likewise, the Board considers risk to the business at
every board meeting, and both current and future potential risks are registered
and assessed during each meeting.

5. Maintain the board as awell-
fL'I]nc_:tioning, balanced team led by the
chair

The board members have a collective
responsibility and legal obligation to
promote the interests of the company,
and are collectively responsible for
defining corporate governance
arrangements.

Utimate responsibility for the quality of,
and approach to, corporate governance
lies with the chair of the board.

The board (and any committees)
should be provided with high quality
information in a timely manner to
facilitate proper assessment of the
matters requiring a decision or
insight.

The board should have an appropriate
balance between executive and non-
executive directors and should have
at least two independent non-
executive

directors. Independence is a board
Jjuagement.

The board should be supported by
committees (e.g. audit, remuneration,
nomination) that have the necessary
skills and knowledge to discharge their
duties and responsibilities effectively.
Directors must commit the time
necessary to fulfill their roles.

The Board consists of Directors with a varied set of skills and substantial
experience within their respective fields, w hich conplements each other well in
relation to directing the corrpany and meking informed decisions for encouraging
the growth of the corrpany.

The Conrpany is controlled by the Board of Directors. Johan Blach Petersen, Non-
executive Chairman (until October 6, 2023, (David George Lis, appointed October
6, 2023)), Andrew Richardson, Non- executive Director and Paul Hodges, Non-
executive Director is responsible for the running of the Board, and Jargen
Korsgaard, the cormpany's Chief Executive Officer, has the executive responsibility
for running the conpany's business and inplementing the corpany's strategy.

The Board is conprised of one Executive Director and a nunber of Non- Executive
Directors. The Board considers that all Non-executive Directors bring an
independent judgenent to bear notw ithstanding the varying lengths of service:

d Johan Blach Petersen (Non-Executive Chairman, until October 6 2023,
ceased to be a Director 9t April 2024)
*  David George Lis (Non-BExecutive Chairman, Appointed Cctober 6, 2023)

i Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen (Chief Executive Officer
and Founder)

*  Paul Hodges (Non-Executive Director)
*  Andrew Richardson (Non-Executive Director)
*  Gavin Manson (Non-Executive Director) (Appointed 14t February 2024)

Detailed profiles for the Directors on the Board are available on
p. 9 of the Report of the Directors and Consolidated Financial
Statements (for the year ended 31 Decenrber, 2023)

All Drectors receive regular and timely information concerning the Group's
operational and financial performance. Relevant information is circulated to the
Directors in advance of meetings. In addition, minutes of the meetings are
circulated to the Conpany's Board of Directors.

The Board has a formal schedule of metters reserved to it and is supported by the
Audit, Rermuneration and Nomrination Conrittee. The Schedule of Matters Reserved
and Conmrittee Terms of Reference are available on the Conpany's website and
can be accessed on the "Corporate governance" page of the website.

The Board meets at least six times per annum The Audit Conmrittee will meet at
least twice a year, The Nomination Committee will meet at least once a year and
otherwise as required and finally the Renuneration Committee meets at least once
avyear.




6. Ensure that between them the
directors have the necessary up-
to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

The board must have an appropriate
balance of sector, financial and
public markets skills and experience,
as well as an appropriate balance of
personal qualities and capabilities.
The board should understand and
challenge its own diversity, including
gender balance, as part of its
composition.

The board should not be dominated by
one person or a group of people. Strong
personal bonds can be important but can
also divide a board.

As companies evolve, the mix of skills
and experience required on the board
will change, and board composition
will need to evolve to reflect this

change.

The Nomination Conrittee of the Board oversees the process and makes
recommrendations to the Board regarding all new Board appointments. VWhere
new appointrrents for the Board are considered, the search for candidates is
conducted, and appointments are made, on nrerit, against objective criteria and
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender. The
Normination Committee also considers succession planning as part of their
responsibility to ensure the consistency of the Boards activities.

The current board is conprised of directors with expertise within their
respective fields, thus providing the company the benefits of a broad spectrum
of knowledge and experience:

David Georae Lis (Non-Executive Chairman, appointed October 6,
2023) Experienced non-executive director with investment and fund
managenment background.

Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen (Chief Executive Officer and
Founder) Hghly skilled innovator with in an in- depth understanding
of international business and developing new technological
solutions for the market.

Paul Hodges (Non-Executive Director)

Conprehensive corporate finance and investrment experience.
Andrew Richardson (Non-Executive Drector)

Strong track record in business transformation, scale-up and
international development.

Gavin Manson (Non-Executive Director, appointed 14th February
2024) Experienced listed conpany CFO.

Detailed profiles for the Directors on the Board are available on
p. 8 of the Report of the Directors and Consolidated Financial Statements (for
the year ended 31 Decenber, 2023).

7. Bvaluate board performance based
on clear and relevant objectives,
seeking continuous improvement

The board should regularly reviewthe
effectiveness of its performance as a unit,
as well as that of its committees and the
individual directors.

The board performance reviewmay be
carried out internally or, ideally,
externally facilitated from time to time.
The review should identify development
or mentoring needs of individual
directors or the wider senior
management team.

It is healthy for membership of the
board to be periodically refreshed.
Succession planning is a vital task for
boards. No member of the board
should become indispensable.

A modus operandi for the evaluation of the board is currently under
consideration, but not implemmented at the current stage of the conpany's
development, as the conpany is still a fairly young and small business unit.

All directors are subject to re-election by the shareholders by rotation.

The comrpany has not adopted a specific policy on succession planning but the
board has a regular focus and discussion on this subject. The Non-executive
Directors are, however, required to give three nmonths' notice under their
enployment contracts if they wish to leave the conpany and the Executive
Directors are required to give nine months' notice.

The Board is confident that the Conpany's middle managenent teamhas the
strength to ensure the Conpany's business is not adversely inpacted in the
periode;bdetween an Executive Director leaving and a replacerrent being
recruited.

The Nomination Conmittee is required to recommend and review nominees as
new directors to the Board where there are vacancies or where it is felt that
additional directors should be appointed.

For new appointrrents, the search for candidates is conducted and
appointments made on nrerit against objective criteria and with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the board. Any senior management appointrents are
also required to be approved by the Norrination Conmittee.

8. Promote a corporate culture that
is based on ethical values and
behaviours

The board should embodly and
promote a corporate culture that is
based on sound ethical values and
behaviours and use it as an asset and
a source of competitive advantage.
The policy set by the board should be
visible in the actions and decisions of
the chief executive and the rest of the
management team. Corporate values
should guide the objectives and

Windar Photonics is a fairly small and young conpany, and the corporate ethical
values have not yet been formally described. A description of the ethical values
that underpin the cormpany will be fornmulated and made public during 2023.

Nonetheless, the company is operated on a sound foundation of ethical principles:

. A high degree of transparency and non-hierarchical
conrunication betw een the various positions in the corrpany
o Entrepreneurial spirit and a high degree of
o enployee influence
. A diverse work-place with a wide representation of different
cultures, which is considered a boon for the conrpany.




strategy of the cormpany.

The culture should be visible in every
aspect of the business, including
recruitment, nominations, training and
engagement. The performance and
revard system should endorse the
desired ethical behaviours across all
levels of the company.

The corporate culture should be
recognizable throughout the disclosures
in the annual report, website and any
other statements issued by the company.

Furthermore, the conpany has provided training and information concerning anti-
bribery and work-place safety to its enployees.

. The conpany is also committed to providing a safe and secure
environment for its enployees, with its policies and procedures
enshrined in its health and safety guidance to enployees.

. Maintain governance structures
and processes that are fit for
purpose and support good
decision- making by the board

The company should maintain
governance structures and
processes in line with its corporate
culture and appropriate to its:

* size and complexity; and

capacity, appetite and
tolerance for risk.

The governance structures should
evolve over time in parallel with its
objectives, strategy and business model
to reflect the development of the
company.

The conrpany's governance structure is described in detail in the Report of the
Directors and Consolidated Financial Statements (for the year ended 31
Decerrber 2023) in the section Corporate Governance Statement on pp. 16-22.

It is also included under the biographies of the directors and comittees of the
Board on our website.

A description of the matters of the board, titled "25 Board reserved matters”, is
made public on the w ebsite, and is available on the
page "Corporate governance".

10.Communicate how the
company is governed and is
performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and
other relevant stakeholders.

A healthy dialogue should exist
between the board and all of its
stakeholders, including shareholders,
to enable all interested parties to
come to informed decisions about the

company.

In particular, appropriate
communication and reporting structure
should exist between the board and all
constituent parts of its shareholder

base.

This will assist:

the communication of shareholders’
views to the board; and the
shareholders' understanding of the
unique circumstances and
constraints faced by the company.

It should be clear where these
communication practices are described
(annual report or website).

Windar Photonics encourages two- way comunication with both its
institutional and private investors. Likewise, Windar Photonics endeavors to
respond swiftly to all queries received fromits investors. The corrpany's CEOis
regularly in contact with the Group's main shareholders and ensures that their
views and concerns are conmrunicated clearly to the Board.

The Board recognises the AGMas an inportant opportunity to meet private
shareholders, and the Directors are available to listen to the view s expressed
RyGt'\t}le comrpany's shareholders in an informal context inmediately following the

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023

Independent auditor's report to the members of Windar Photonics Pic
OPINON

We have audited the financial statements of Windar Photonics Fc (the 'Parent Conpany') and its subsidiaries (the
'Group') for the year ended 31 Decerber 2023 w hich conprise the Consolidated Staterment of Corrprehensive Incorre,
the Consolidated and Conpany Staterrents of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Conpany Statements of Cash
FHows, the Consolidated and Conpany Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framew ork that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards (IFRSs) and as
regards the Parent Corrpany Financial Statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Corrpanies Act
2006.

In our opinion:

o the Group and Parent Conpany financial statemrents give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of




the Parent Conpany's affairs as at 31 Decenber 2023 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

« the Group and Parent Conpany's financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by United Kingdom

¢ the Group and Parent Conpany's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Conpanies Act 2006.

BASIS FOROPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statemments section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Parent Conpany in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staterrents in the UK, including the FRCs Bhical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirerrents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
CONCLUSIONS TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

The directors set out their basis of using the going concern basis in note 3. Based on the work we have performed,
we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the corrpany's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve nonths
fromw hen the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those metters that, in our professional judgerent, were of most significance in our audit of the
Financial Statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team These metters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forning our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a conplete list of all risks identified by our
audit.

Carrying value of intangible assets

Carrying value of inter-conpany receivable (parent conpany only)
Revenue recognition

Going concern

These are explained in nore detail below .

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit

Key Audit Matter matter

Carrying value of intangibles

The Group holds material intangible assets. We have performed the following audit procedures:

These intangibles comprise development
costs and research and development. « our audit procedures included a consideration of whether the

capitalisation criteria were met for the capitalised project;
As set out in note 4, the group recognises an

internally generated intangible asset arising e

from development (or from the development
phase of an internal project) if all of the criteria
per accounting standards can be
demonstrated. This includes the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible assets during its
development. Costs are allocated between the
capitalised project and other projects based on
directors’ judgement.

Once capitalised, the directors make an
assessment of the recoverability of these
costs.

The Directors have a duty to confirm that all
intangibles, are correctly recognised and
appropriately considered for any impairment at
the year end.

Furthermore, should impairment indicators be
identified, there is a level of judgement
exercised by management in estimating fair
value of intangibles, which may result in
inaccurate valuation of balances.

We have determined this to be a key audit
matter due to the level of judgement involved
in this area.

costs capitalised consist of payroll costs and other costs.
Other costs have been agreed to external documentation.
Payroll costs have been agreed to a schedule prepared by the
directors splitting payroll costs betw een the capitalised project
and other projects, and this split has been tested by
confirmation with the enployees working on the capitalised
project;

obtained and reviewed menagement's assessment of
impairment of the intangibles held;

we have also reviewed the projected revenue and income

streans against the capitalised projects to evaluate
management's  judgement that the carrying value is
recoverable;

w here indicators of impairment were identified, we challenged
management's assessment of any future income from the
intangibles;

where no indicators of inpairment were highlighted by
management, we challenged the judgermrents made in
management's assessment by identifying contradictory signs
of any potential indicators of inpairment;

based on our work we consider that the costs capitalised
satisfy the criteria of the relevant accounting standards and
did not identify indications that an inpairment was required;
and

considered the appropriateness of the Group's disclosures in
the financial staterrents.

Based on the audit work performed, we are satisfied that
management have app__ropriately valued intangibles in Ii_n_e wjth



Carrying value of inter-company receivable
(parent company only)

We identified a risk that the inter-company
receivables of the parent company (Windar
Photonics Pic) in its subsidiaries (subsidiaries
are listed within note 16) may be impaired.

At the end of each reporting period, the
directors are required to assess whether
there is any indication that the amounts
receivable from subsidiary undertakings as
shown in the parent company may be
impaired.

Management's assessment of the recoverable
amount of inter-company receivables with
subsidiaries  requires  estimation and
judgement around assumptions used,
including the cash flows to be generated from
continuing operations. Changes to
assumptions could lead to material changes in
the estimated recoverable amount, impacting
the value of the amounts receivable from
subsidiaries and impairment charges.

The directors have not identified an indicator
of impairment in relation to the inter-company
receivable from the subsidiary undertakings
and as a result carried out an impairment
review. This area was significant to our audit
because the directors' exercised judgement in
determining the underlying assumptions used
in this calculation.

Revenue recognition

The Group had a total turnover of €4.8m (2022:
€1.9m) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Revenue is the principal measure used by
stakeholders to determine the performance of
the group. Revenue recognition and in
particular cut-off are presumed to be
significant risk areas of the audit.

The directors disclose the basis of recognition
of revenue in the accounting policies in note 4.

Going concern

The group is dependent upon its ability to
generate sufficient cash flows to meet
continued operational costs and hence,
continue trading.

The key assumptions that impact the
conclusions are the levels of future revenue,
and the ability to control the operating costs.
There are, therefore, inherent risks that the
forecasts may overstate future revenue due to
the timing of closure of future contracts, or
understate future costs, and that the Group
will not be able to operate within its cash
resources and continue to operate as a going
concern.

The going concern assumptions are
dependent on the future growth of the current
business.

their accounting polcy and in accordance with the
requiremrents of IFRS. We are also satisfied that all necessary
disclosure have been made in the consolidated financial
staterents.

We have performed the follow ing audit procedures:

o reviewed managenent's assessment of future operating
cashflows and indicators of impairment;

o comrpared the carrying value of the inter-conpany receivables
at the year end to the net assets and expected future profits
of each subsidiary;

o assessed the reasonableness of the key assunmptions used in
management's estimates of recoverable value, in line with the
econorric and industry statistics relevant to the business;

e  challenged cash inflows from revenue generating activities
and the key assunmptions applied in arriving at these;

. assessed the reasonability of cash outflows, including
contracted delivery costs, and research and capital spend;

. considered the appropriateness of the Parent Corrpany's
disclosures in relation to any impairment in the Conpany only
financial staterents; and

. ensured that disclosures of the key judgements and
assunptions, and sensitivity of the impairment loss recognised
was appropriately disclosed.

Based on the audit work performed, we are satisfied that the
managemrent have assessed and considered if impairment is
required in respect of the inter-conpany receivable fromsubsidiary
undertakings in the Parent Conrpany financial statements.

We have performed the following audit procedures:

« Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's revenue
recognition accounting policies.

» Reviewed a sanple of contracts with customers and
tested that the Group has correctly accounted for the
revenue arising fromthese contracts in accordance with
the accounting policies and review ed managenent's
judgenrent on the contract price and the allocation to
performance obligations.

o  Sales listing in the year were reconciled to the contracts and
nominal ledgers. Detailed testing of a sanple of transactions
were performed and cut-off checked. Walkthroughs of
revenue were performed to check that controls were working
appropriately.

o We performed detailed testing of a sanple of deferred income
to ensure that income was posted to the correct period.

. We agreed a sanple of contracts and vouched income
through to bank staterments.

Based on the audit work performed, we are satisfied that
management has appropriately recognised revenue and all
necessary disclosures have been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Managenment's going concern forecasts include a nunber of
assunmptions related to the future cash flow and associated risks.
Qur audit work focused on evaluating and challenging the
reasonableness of these assunptions and their inpact on the
forecast period.

Specifically, we obtained, challenged and assessed management's
going concern forecasts and performed procedures including:

« Verifying consistency of key inputs relating to the future costs
and revenues to other financial and operational information
obtained during audit.

« Performing sensitivity analysis on management's "worst case"
scenario assunrptions.

Further, we have noted that in April 2024, the group successfully
raised capital funding anounting to £4.3m net of costs, which has
put the group in a better position post year end.

Based on the audit work performed, we are satisfied with the
management's use of going concern assunrptions in preparing the
financial statements of the group.



OURAPPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
meteriality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial staterrent line itens and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the Group financial staterments as follow's:

Financial statements

Overall materiality €71,000 (2022: €105,200).

How we deternined it Based on 1.5% of revenue (2022: Based on 10% of net loss)

Rationale for We believe that revenue is the primary measure used by the shareholders in
benchmerk applied assessing the performance of the group. This benchmerk is considered the most

appropriate because the group is a trading group.

We agreed with the Directors that we would report to them misstaterrents identified during our audit above €3,550
(2022: €5,260) as well as misstatemments below those anounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative
reasons.

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the Conpany financial statements as follow s:

Financial statements

Overall materiality €25,000 (2022: €24,500).

How we determined it Based on of 2.5% of gross assets (2022: Based on of 2.5% of gross assets)
Rationale for We believe that gross assets is the primary measure used by the shareholders in
benchmeark applied assessing the performance of the Conpany. This benchmark is considered the

nost appropriate as the Conpany is a holding conpany.

We set performance meateriality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate,
uncorrected and undetected misstaterrents exceed the nateriality for the financial staterrents as a whole.
Performance materiality has been set at 75% of overall materiality. The Rerformance materiality was set at €53,550 for
the Consolidated Group and €18,825 for the Parent conpany. We determined performance meteriality with reference
to factors such as our understanding of the Group and its corrplexity, the quality of the control environment and ability
to rely on controls and the low level of uncorrected misstaterents in the prior year audit.

AN OVERVIBW OF THE SCOPE OF OURAUDIT

As part of designing our audit we deternined meteriality, as above, and assessed the risk of material misstaterrent in
the financial statements. In particular, we looked at areas requiring the Directors to make significant judgements and
estimates, for exanple in respect of the valuation of investment in subsidiaries, intangibles and inventory and
considered future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
managenent override of internal controls, including evaluating w hether there was evidence of bias by the Directors
that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

How we tailored the audit scope
The WK operations and consolidation are accounted for fromthe UK. We conducted a full scope audit of the Group
and key commponents w hilst carrying out targeted audit procedures on non-significant conponents.

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of four conpanies made up of the parent corrpany, an intermediate
holding conpany and two trading conpanies. The principal trading conpany is located in Denmark and the other
trading conpany is in Shanghai. The head office and main accounting location is located in Denmark. Our Group audit
scope focused on the group's principal trading conpany and based on our risk assessment we deternined this
conpany to be the only conponent within the group which, in our view, required an audit of their conplete financial
information due to their size. This audit was performed by BDO Denmerk. The other trading conpany and the
intermediate holding conpany were subject to analytical review and audit testing on specific areas which were
meterial or related to significant risks. This work was performed by Jeffreys Henry LLP together with additional
procedures performed at Group level in respect of the audit of the parent corpany, the consolidation and going
concern. These reviews gave us the evidence we needed to formour opinion on the Group financial statemments as a
whole.

Audits of the subsidiary conpanies were performed at lower levels materiality conpared to group meteriality and
determined by us to be appropriate to the relative size of the conpany concerned. As part of our audit strategy
detailed group audit instructions were issued to the component auditor and the Group audit team reviewed the
conplete audit file for the main trading conpany. Virtual conmrunications were used to verify certain aspects of our
audit.

We have audited all conponents within the Group, and no unaudited conponents remain.
OTHERINFORMATION

The other information conrprises the informetion included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the Group and
Parent Conpany financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemments, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatemments, we are required to determine w hether there is a material msstaterrent in the financial
statements or a naterial misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the w ork undertaken in the course of the audit:




« the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requiremrents.

MATTERS ON WHCH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Conpany and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material risstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to w hich the Corrpanies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Conpany, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received frombranches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Conpany financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations w e require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained rmore fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Group and Parent Corrpany financial statemments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Directors deternine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are
free frommaterial misstatemment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Group and Parent Conpany financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and the Parent Conpany's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, metters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Conrpany or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
meterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (K) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Msstatemments can arise fromfraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
econorric decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stateents.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-conpliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstaterrents in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below .

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Qur approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and non-conpliance with law's and regulations, was as followss:

. the senior statutory auditor ensured the engagement team collectively had the appropriate conpetence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-conpliance with applicable law's and regulations.

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the group through discussions with directors and other
managenent.

« we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statemments or the operations of the comrpany, including taxation legislation, data protection, anti-bribery,
enrployment, environmental, health and safety legislation and anti-noney laundering regulations.

« we assessed the extent of conrpliance with the law's and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
managenent and inspecting legal correspondence.

o identified laws and regulations were conmrunicated within the audit teamregularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-conpliance throughout the audit; and

e we assessed the susceptibility of the group's financial statements to meterial misstaterrent, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud night occur, by:

o making enquiries of managenment as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud,
their know ledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

o considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-conpliance with laws
and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

« performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

o tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

o assessed whether judgements and assunptions mede in deternrining the accounting estimates set out in note 6 of
the Group financial statements were indicative of potential bias;

¢ investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions; and

« inresponse to the risk of irregularities and non-conpliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
w hich included, but were not linited to:

o agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting docurrentation;
o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

o enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and clains; and

o reviewing correspondence with HVRC and the group's legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The nore renmoved that law's and regulations
are fromfinancial transactions, the less likely it is that we would becorme aw are of nonconpliance. Auditing standards
also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-conpliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstaterrents that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise fromerror as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: hitp:/wmwwfrc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

USE OF THIS REPORT


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

This report is made solely to the Conpany's menrbers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Corrpanies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Conpany's menrbers those
matters we are required to state to themin an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Conpany and the Conpany's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jan Charlesw orth (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Gravita Audit Linited, Statutory Auditor
Aldgate Tower

2 Leman Street

London E1 8FA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023

Year ended
Year ended
31 Decenber
31 December 2023 2022
€ €
Note
Revenue from contracts with customers 8 4,766,434 1,853,249
Cost of goods sold (2,361,386) (906,638)
Gross profit 2,405,098 946,611
Adninistrative expenses (2,548,366) (1,953,607)
Other operating income 32,210 32,260
Exceptional expenses - (89,038)
Loss from operations 9 (111,058) (1,063,774)
Finance expense 12 (240,033) (230,734)
Loss before taxation (351,091) (1,294,508)
Taxation 13 168,571 218,837
Loss for the year attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of Windar Photonics Plc (182,520) (1,075,671)
Other comprehensive income
tterrs that will or may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange gains arising on translation of foreign
operations 7,089 22817
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
the ordinary equity holders of Windar Photonics Pic (175,431) (1,052,8%4)
Loss per share attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of Windar Photonics Plc
Basic and diluted, cents per share 14 (0.3) (1.9)

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 39-62 formpart of these financial staterents.



COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

31 December 3t Deceggzezr
2023
€ €
Note
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 17 1,343,361 1,196,996
Property, plant & equiprment 18 330,799 106,983
Right of use assets 19 56,005 -
Deposits 38,262 28,94
Total non-current assets 1,768,427 1,332,973
Current assets
Inventory 20 718,983 699,236
Trade receivables 21 546,273 389,652
Other receivables 21 135,088 197,496
Tax credit receivables 21 151,015 218,928
Prepayments 129,551 47,860
Cash and cash equivalents 22 152,180 1,404,073
Total current assets 1,833,090 2,957,245
Total assets 3,601,517 4,290,218
Equity
Share capital 27 834,771 834,771
Share premium 28 16,479,150 16,479,150
Merger reserve 28 2,910,866 2,910,866
Foreign currency reserve 28 (58,488) (65,577)
Retained earnings 28 (19,901,376) (19,818,092)
Total equity 264,923 341,118
Non-current liabilities
Warranty provisions 30 25,493 45774
Holiday Allow ance provisions 31 138,538 134,734
Lease liabilities 26 31,711 -
Loans 25 1,287,697 1,690,462
Total non-current liabilities 1,483,439 1,870,970
Current liabilities
Trade payables 24 572,234 264,083
Other payables and accruals 24 472,810 451,402
Contract liabilities 24 251,678 1,205,531
Lease liabilities 26 25,648 -
Loans 24 530,785 157,114
Total current liabilities 1,853,155 2,078,130
Total liabilities 3,336,594 3,949,100
Total equity and liabilities 3,601,517 4,290,218

The financial statements w ere approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2024 and

were signed below on its behalf by:
Jargen Korsgaard Jensen, Director

The notes on pages 39 to 62 formpart of these financial statements.

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
€ €
Note
Assets
Non-current assets
Investrents in subsidiaries 16 - -
Total non-current assets - -
Current assets
Other receivables 21 12,512 21,300
Intragroup receivables 21 1,091,896 183,579
Cash and cash equivalents 22 - 960,237
Total current assets 1,104,408 1,165,116
Total assets 1,104,408 1,165,116




Equity

Share capital 27 834,771 834,771
Share premum 28 16,479,150 16,479,150
Merger reserve 28 658,279 658,279
Foreign exchange reserve 28 - (7,746)
Retained earnings 28 (17,088,471) (16,977,909)
Total equity 883,729 986,545
Current liabilities

Trade payables 24 43,627 108,452
Bank overdrafts 22 426 -
Other payables and accruals 24 176,626 70,119
Total liabilities 220,679 178,571
Total equity and liabilities 1,104,408 1,165,116

The Conrpany has taken advantage of the exenption allow ed under section 408 of the Conpanies Act 2006 and has
not presented its ow n Statement of conprehensive income in these financial statemments. The loss after tax of the

parent Conpany for the year was €202,052 (2022 - loss €889,697).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 29 2024, and

were signed below on its behalf by:

Jargen Korsgaard Jensen, Director

The notes on pages 39 to 62 formpart of these financial statements.
Conrpany nurrber: 09024532

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 Decenber 2022
Note € €
Loss for the period before taxation (351,091) (1,294,508)
Adjustrrents for:
Finance expense/(income) 12 240,033 230,734
Anortisation 17 179,134 174,792
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment 18 30,165 2,992
Depreciation - right of use assets 28,738 -
Received tax credit 237,389 265,510
Taxes paid (1,369) -
Foreign exchange gain/(losses) 7,089 22,817
Share option and warrant costs 99,236 15,927
469,324 (581,736)
Movements in working capital
Changes in inventory (19,747) (4,268)
Changes in receivables (94,213) 562,504
Changes in prepayments (81,691) (13,906)
Changes in deposits (9,268) (2,59)
Changes in trade payables 308,149 (280,247)
Changes in contract liabilities (953,853) 253,926
Changes in warranty provisions 28 (20,285) 9,620
Changes in other payables and provisions 21,402 (306,832)
Cash flow from operations (380,182) (363,535)
Investing activities
Payments for intangible assets 17 (493,436) (297,540)
Payments for tangible assets 18 (254,796) (107,456)
Grants received 17 165,265 121,019
Cash flow from investing activities (582,967) (283,977)




Financing activities

Proceeds fromissue of share capital - 2,393,686
Costs associated with the issue of share capital - (258,266)
Proceeds fromnew long-termloans - 373,055
Lease payments (27,348) -
Net repayment of loans (52,249) (372,934)
Interest received / (paid) (208,757) (124,630)
Cash flow from financing activities (288,354) 2,010,911
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,251,503) 1,363,399
Exchange differences (390) 126
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,404,073 40,548
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 152,180 1,404,073
The notes on pages 39 to 62 formpart of these financial staterrents.
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023
Year ended Year ended
Note 31 Decenber 2023 31 Decenber2022
€ €
Loss for the period before taxation (202,052) (889,699)
Adjustrrents for:
Finance Expenses and currency losses / (Income) (49,352) 17,313
(251,404) (195,010)
Movenents in working capital
Changes in receivables 8,788 (8,402)
Changes in loans to subsidiary entity - (92,069)
Changes in trade payables (64,825) (77,819)
Changes in other payables and provisions 106,506 (108,512)
Cash flow fromoperations (200,935) (481,812)
Investing activities
Loans to subsidiary (761,664) -
Additional investrrent in subsidiary undertaking 16 - (677,376)
Cash flow frominvesting activities (761,664) (677,376)
Financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of share capital - 2,393,686
Cost associated with the issue of share capital - (258,266)
Interest expenses and currency losses during the year / (Income) 1,936 (20,449)
Cash flow fromfinancing activities 1,936 2,114,971
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (960,663) 955,783
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 960,237 4,454
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 (426) 960,237
The notes on pages 39 to 62 formpart of these financial statements.
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023
Share Share
Capital Premium Merger reserve
€ € €

Foreign curren

Group



At 1 January
2022

New shares
issued

Costs associated
with capital raise
Share option and
warrant costs
Transaction
with owners

Loss for the year

Exchange
gains/(losses)
arising on
translation of
foreign
operations

Total
comprehensive
loss

675,664
159,107

14,502,837
2,234,579
(258,266)

2,910,866

159,107

1,976,313

At 31 December
2022

Share option and
warrant costs
Transaction
with owners

Loss for the year
Warrants reserve

Exchange
gains/(losses)
arising on
translation of
foreign
operations

834,771

16,479,150

2,910,866

Total
comprehensive
loss

At 31 December
2023

834,771

16,479,150

2,910,866

Company

At 1 January
2022

New shares
issued

Costs associated
with capital raise
Transactions
with owners

Loss for the year

Total
comprehensive
loss

Share
Capital

675,664
159,107

Share
Premium

14,502,837
2,234,579
(258,266)

Merger reserve

658,279

Foreign curren

159,107

1,976,313

At 31 December
2022

Loss for the year
Warrant reserve
Exchange
gains/(losses)
arising on
translation of
foreign
operations

834,771

16,479,150

658,279

Total
comprehensive
loss

At 31 December
2023

834,771

16,479,150

658,279

The notes on pages 39 to 62 formpart of these financial staterrent.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVIBER 2023

1. General information

The Conpany is a public linited conmpany donriciled in the United Kingdom and incorporated under registered nunber
09024532 in England and Wales. The Conpany's registered office is 3 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2AQ

The Group was formed when the Conpany acquired on 29 August 2014 the entire share capital of Windar Photonics
AJS, a conpany registered in Denmark through the issue of ordinary shares.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statemments conrprise the consolidated financial information of the Group as at 31 Decenber
2023 and are prepared under the historic cost convention, except for the following:

e  Share-based payments and share option and warrant costs

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial information are set out below .

The financial statemments have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards
("IFRSs").

2. Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

New and amended standards adopted by the Group and Corrpany.

Several amendrents and interpretations apply for the first time in 2023.
New standards and interpretations
From1 January 2023 the follow ing became effective and w ere adopted by the Group and Conpany:

. Amendrrents to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Staterrent 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Folicies (effective 1
January 2023)

e Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023)

. Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising froma Single Transaction
(effective 1 January 2023)

e Amendments to IAS 12 - International tax reform- pillar two nmodel rules (effective 1 January 2023)
e [FRS 17 - Insurance Contracts, as amended in Decermber 2021 (effective 1 January 2023)

Their adoption did not have a material effect on the Group or Conpany's loss for the year or equity.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
e Amendnents to IAS 1 - Glassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (effective 1 January 2024)
e Amendnents to IAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (effective 1 January 2024)
e Anmendnents to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (effective 1 January 2024)

It is not considered that the above standards and amendmrents will have a significant effect on the results or net
assets of the Group or Conpany.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group and Conrpany.

3. Going Concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Group will continue as a going concern.
Under the going concern assunmption, an entity is anticipated to continue in business for the foreseeable future with
neither the intention nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking protection from creditors pursuant to
law's or regulations.

Based on the Group's latest trading expectations and associated cash flow forecasts, taking into account the £4.3m
capital increase in April 2024 (see note 34) the directors have considered the cash requirements of the Group on
w hich basis the board is convinced the Conrpany has sufficient cash flows for operations for the comring 12 nonths
period.

As such the financial statements do not include the adjustrments that would result if the Group was unable to continue
as a going concern.

4. Accounting policies

Investment in subsidiaries

Investrrents in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for any permanent dininution in value. The cost of Windar
Photonics A/S was measured at the carrying amount of the Conpany's share of the equity in Windar Fhotonics A/S at
30 June 2014. In 2022, the Conpany established a new 100% ow ned Danish holding conpany w hich holds all
outstanding shares in Windar Photonics A/S.



Capital contribution
Anounts forw arded to subsidiary entities w hich are not due to be repaid are treated as a capital contribution and an
increase to the cost of the investrrent.

Functional and presentation currency

fterrs included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary econonric environment in
which each entity operates ("the functional currency") which is considered by the Directors to be Euro for the Parent
Conpany, Danish Kroner DKK for Windar Photonics A/S and Windar Denmark ApS, and Renminbi RNB for Windar
Photonics Shanghai Co. Ltd. The Group Financial Statemments have been presented in Euro's which represent the
domminant econorric environment in w hich the Group operates.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary econoric
environment in w hich they operate (their "functional currency") are recorded at the rates ruling w hen the transactions
occur. Foreign currency nonetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the reporting date.
Bxchange differences arising on the refranslation of unseftled nonetary assets and liabilties are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Exchange rates apply for the annual accounts 2023:

Year end 2023 Average 2023 Year end 2022 Average 2022
BEuro/DKK 7,4529 74510 7,4365 7,4393
Euro/RVB 7,8509 7,6500 7,3585 7,0751

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into Euros at rates approximating to those ruling
when the transactions took place. All assets and liabilities of overseas operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on translating the opening net assets at opening rate and the results
of overseas operations at actual rate are recognised in other conprehensive income and accunulated in the foreign
exchange reserve.

Revenue

Revenue arises from the sale of the WIndEYE™ and WindVISION™ products and related services that measures
renote wind speed measurements. Revenue is recognised exclusive of VAT and other taxes and when the Group
has performed the specific obligations under the contract with custormers.

Revenue arises fromthree areas of the business and is recognised as follows:

. Product sale. Revenue is recognised when the obligation of delivery of the product to the custorrer is
conplete at full contract value.

. Installation. Revenue is recognised when the obligation of acceptance of installation is conplete at full
contract value.

e  Sale under performance obligation. Where there is a requirement to prove performance of product within
the contract in respect of the increase in output fromthe turbines, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when each of the distinct performance obligations are satisfied which varies from customer to customer
but is broadly 60% on delivery of product, 30% on installation and 10% when the performance obligation in
terms of generated output is met.

Where payment for installation and other performance services is received before the installation and other
services have been conpleted, revenue is deferred and included within creditors and released on conrpletion of
the installation and service obligations.

No adjustrent is made to the revenue recognised in respect of any financing conponent of the contract.

Where products are sold with warranties revenue is recognised in the period w here the products are shipped and an
appropriate provision for claims under warranty is based on past experience is accounted for in accordance to IAS
37. This is shown as an expense in the Consolidated Statemment of Profit and Loss and Other Corrprehensive Income.

Other Operating Income includes sales of other services and rental income originating from outside the core business
of the Group and is recognised exclusive of VAT and other taxes.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the board of directors.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments

The Group classifies all its financial instruments into the anortised cost category. The Group's accounting policy for
each category is as follows:

e  Trade and loan receivables: Trade receivables are initially recognised by the Group and carried at original
invoice anount less an allowance for any uncollectible or inpaired amounts. An inpairment provision is
calculated by considering the trade receivables and expected credit losses. The Group applies the IFRS 9
sinplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss provision for
trade receivables. The expected loss rates are based on the Group's historical credit losses experienced
over the three-year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the Group's custorrers. An estimate for doubtful debts is
also made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Debts are written off when they are
identified as being uncollectible. Trade receivables and other receivables are recognised at fair value. Loan
receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They arise principally through the interconpany loans; Inpairment of loan receivables is
calculated utilising the lifetime expected credit losses of these loans and the changes in the credit risk of the
counterparty.

e Cash and cash equivalents in the staterrent of financial position conprise cash at bank, cash in hand.

. Financial liabilities. The Group treats its financial liabilities in accordance with the following accounting
policies:

Trade payables and other short-term nonetary liabilities are recognised at fair value and subsequently at
arortised cost

e Loans are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the
instrument. Such interest-bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at anortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a constant
rate on the balance of the liability carried in the statemment of financial position. "Interest expense” in this
context includes initial transaction costs and premiuns payable on redenption, as well as any interest
payable w hile the liability is outstanding.

Share capital



Financial instruments issued by the Conpany are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
definition of a financial liability.

The Conpany's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in the Statemment of Conprehensive Incone in the period in which they are incurred.

Current taxation

The current tax is based upon the taxable profit for the period together with adjustments, where necessary, in
respect of prior periods. The Group's asset or liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the financial period end date.

Current tax is recognised in the Staterment of Corrprehensive Income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other conrprehensive incorre or directly in equity.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised w here the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Staterrent of
Financial Position differs fromits tax base.

Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against w hich the difference can be utilised.

The anount of the asset or liability is deternmined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered).

Dividends

Dividends are recognised w hen they becorre legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders,
this is when declared by the directors and paid. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting.

Property, plant and equipment

terrs of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently stated at cost less
accunmulated depreciation and, w here appropriate, provision for inmpairment in value or estimated loss on disposal. The
cost includes the acquisition price and costs incurred directly in connection with the acquisition until the time when the
asset is ready to be used.

Depreciation is provided on all iterrs of property, plant and equipment so as to write off their carrying value, less its
residual value, over their expected useful econonic lives. It is provided at the following rates:

Hant and equipment over 3- 5years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Intangible assets - Development projects
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from developrment (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been denmonstrated:

«  Technical feasibility of conpleting the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
« Theintention to conplete the intangible asset and use or sell it

« The ability to use or sell the intangible asset

e How the intangible asset will generate probable future economric benefits

o The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to conrplete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset

« The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sumof the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally

generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in Statement of Conprehensive
Income in the period in which it is incurred. Capitalised development costs conprise costs, including wages and
salaries. Anortisation or other finance expenses are not recognized.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accunmulated
anortisation and accurrulated inpairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the basis of the assets' residual value and an assessment of the assets' expected useful
lives, however, no more than 5 years fromfinishing the technology or receival of the first milestone-payment.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that are subject to depreciation or anortisation are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication that the assets are inpaired. Where there is any indication that an asset may be inpaired,

the carrying value of the asset (or cash-generating unit to which the asset has been allocated) is tested for
impairment. An inpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying anount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

The recoverable anount is the higher of an asset's (or OGUs) fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets that have been previously impaired are reviewed at each reporting date to
assess whether there is any indication that the inpairment losses recognised in prior periods may no longer exist or
may have decreased.



Deposits
Deposits in respect of property rentals are recorded as separately identifiable assets and recognised at historical
cost.

Inventory

Cost of raw meterials and con-sunmables consists of purchase price. Cost of manufactured goods and work in
progress consists of costs of raw materials, con-surmables and direct labour costs.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at the lower of cost and the net realisable value of
inventories where the net realisable value is calculated as the estimated selling price less conpletion costs and costs
incurred to execute sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts that have arisen as a result of past transactions
and are discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of noney and the risks
specific to the liability. Product warranty provisions are based on 4% of the total products delivered, using an average
repair cost per product.

Grants
Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will conply with the conditions attaching
to themand that the grants will be received.

Grants are recognised either in Staterment of Conprehensive Income on a systerretic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to conpensate or where they
related directly to capitalised costs, they are netted off the cost of the assets.

Grants that are receivable as comrpensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in Staterment of Conprehensive
Income in the period in w hich they becone receivable.

Share based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based conpensation plan under which the entity receives services from
enrployees as consideration for equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of the enployee services received in
exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is recognised as an expense. The total anmount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the instruments granted. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of instruments that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions and service conditions. It recognises the inpact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Employee benefits
Enployees in the Group typically have variating holiday benefits. At the end of each reporting period the Group accrue
these holiday liabilities.

Leases

At the commencenent date of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
which is measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
paynments that depend on an index or a rate, and anmpunts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on w hich the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencenent date if the interest rate inplicit in the lease is not readily deterninable. After the commencenrent date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
mede. In addition, the carrying anount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a nodffication, a change in the lease
term a change in the in-substance fixed lease paynents or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exenption to its short-term leases of mechinery and equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencenent date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exerrption to leases of office equipment
that are considered of low value (i.e., below $5,000. Lease payments on short-termleases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

5. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Windar Photonics plc and all of its subsidiary
undertakings as at 31 Decerber 2023 using the acquisition or merger method of accounting as required. Where the
acquisition method is used, the results of subsidiary undertakings are included fromthe date of acquisition.

Where the conpany has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The conpany controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circunstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the conpany has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee without holding the majority of the voting rights. In deternining w hether de-facto control exists the conpany
considers all relevant facts and circurmstances, including:

o  The size of the conpany's voting rights relative to both the size and dispersion of other parties who hold
voting rights.

«  Substantive potential voting rights held by the conpany and by other parties.

e Other contractual arrangerrents.

e Historic patterns in voting attendance.

The consolidated financial statements present the resuits of the conpany and its subsidiaries ("the Group”) as if they
formed a single entity. Interconpany transactions and balances betw een group conpanies are therefore eliminated in
full.



The acquisition of the subsidiary Windar Fhotonics A/S in 2014 was deemed to be a business combination under
conmmon control as the ultimate control before and after the acquisition was the sanme. As a result, the transaction is
outside the scope of IFRS 3 and has been included under the principles of merger accounting by reference to LK
GAAR In 2022, the direct ow nership of the subsidiary was changed whereafter the 100% ow ned subsidiary Windar
Denmerk ApS holds the 100% direct ow nership of Windar Photonics A/S.

Under the merger method, the income, expense, assets and liabilities of Windar Photonics A/S and Windar Denmark
ApS have been included in the consolidated financial statemments of Windar Photonics plc as if it had always been a
menber of the Group, taking into account the original acquisition date of the wider Group. The amounts attributed to
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of Windar Photonics A/S therefore reflect their book values as at 1
January 2013. Any difference between the consideration paid for the acquisition of Windar Photonics A/S by the
Conrpany and the net book value of the assets (including attributed goodwill) and liabilities acquired of €1.5mhas been
treated as an adjustrrent in the merger reserve.

6. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group mekes certain estimates and assunptions regarding the future. Estimates and assunptions are continually
evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circurrstances. The Group has made no significant judgements other than described
below. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assunptions. The estimates and
assunptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrent to the carrying anounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are discussed below. The Group considers that these risks relate to the next
financial period and those in the future by the nature of those judgerrents.

(a) Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful life are anortised or depreciated over their useful lives. Useful lives are based on
the managerrent's estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are periodically review ed for
continued appropriateness. Changes to estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying value and anounts
charged to the Statement of Conprehensive Incone in specific periods. The useful life of all development projects has
been estimated at five years fromthe date of capitalisation. The carrying value at the end of the period

was €1,343,361 and a change in the estimate of useful life from5 to 3 years would reduce this anount by €100,343
and the anrtisation charged to the Statement of Conprehensive income for the year would have decreased by
€86,138. More details are included in note 17.

(b) Inpairment of intangible assets

In assessing impairment, Management estimates the recoverable amount of cash generating units based on expected
future cash flows and uses the weighted average cost of capital to discount them At the end of each reporting
period Management reviews a four year forward looking financial projection including a terninal value for the Group.
The Management has further evaluated the terminal growth expectations and the applied discount rate applicable to
derive a Net Present Valuation (NPV) of the Group. If the NPV of the Group shows a lower valuation than the net
assets or the conpany cost of investment in subsidiary an inpairment will be made. Based on this evaluation including
Managements estimates and assurrption no inpairment was mede during the reporting period. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assunrptions about future operating results in particular sales volumes and the determination of a suitable
discount rate.

(c) Inmpairment of investrent in subsidiaries

In assessing inpairment of investrents in subsidiaries, managenent estimates the recoverable anount of each asset.
Management has estimated the impairment for the carrying value of the investrent in reference to the net asset value
of the subsidiaries. Estimation uncertainty relates to assunptions about future operating results. Also see note 16 for
details in relation to investrrents.

(d) Estimation of the expected credit losses or trade receivables

In assessing the expected credit losses, in respect of the trade receivables under IFRS 9, the Group considers the
past performance of the receivable book along with future factors, that may affect the credit worthiness of the entire
trade receivables. Estimations have therefore been made within these assurrptions which could affect the carrying
value of the trade receivables.

(e) Warranty provision

In the current financial year, the Group revised its estimate for the warranty provision related to its product sales.
Previously, the provision was based on 4% of the anortised cost of the products delivered within the prior two years.
The new estimate is based on 4% of the total products delivered, with an average repair cost per product. This
change reflects an updated understanding of the costs associated with potential warranty clains, based on historical
data and industry trends.

The adjustrrent to the estimate was made to nmore accurately reflect the Group's anticipated warranty obligations.
Under the previous methodology, the provision was limted to a percentage of sales over the last two years.
However, as the Group has gathered nore data on warranty clains, it became evident that a nore conprehensive
approach, considering all delivered products, would provide a better estimate of potential future warranty costs. This
change aligns the warranty provision with the actual experiences and expectations regarding product repairs and
replacements. Managenent is satisfied that the current provision is appropriate and will review the percentage used
on an annual basis as nore information becomes available on the warranty position.

7. Financial instruments - Risk Management

The Group is exposed through its operations to the follow ing financial risks:

. Credit risk

. Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk
. Foreign exchange risk

. Liquidity risk

In conmon with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise fromits use of financial instruments.
This note describes the Groun's obiectives. policies and brocesses for manaaina those risks and the methods used to



measure them  Further quantitative informetion in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial
staterents.
There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies

and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous periods unless
otherwise stated in this note.

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, fromw hich financial instrument risk arises, include Trade and
other receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, loans and Trade and other payables.

The Board has overall responsibility for the deternination of the Group's risk management objectives and policies and,
whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes
that ensure the effective inplementation of the objectives and policies to the Group's finance function. The Board
receive quarterly reports fromthe finance function through w hich it review s the effectiveness of the processes put in
place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.

The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting
the Group's conrpetitiveness and flexibility. Further details regarding these policies are set out below:

Credit risk

Oredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a custoner or a counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet its contractual obligations. In 2016 the Group restricted its policy in respect of credit risks related to
customrers. Prior to any mejor sales of products or services to new custorrers the Group seeks to either

e receive prepayments or
e obtain full credit risk insurance

or a combination of the above, hence the Group's exposure to credit risk from trade and other receivables is
considered insignificant.

Oredit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions. For banks
and financial institutions, only mejor independently rated parties with minimumrating "A" are accepted.

The Group does not enter into derivatives to manage credit risk.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Growth Fund borrowing from the Danish public institution, Vaekstfonden, initially bore interest at a fixed annual
rate of 12%. In prior years, the terms for the borrowing was renewed whereafter the interest rate was reduced to
7% p.a. and the loan to be repaid on a quarterly basis instalment over the period from 1 January, 2022 until 1 October,
2026.

In 2020, the Group obtained an additional Covid-19 loan the Growth Fund borrowing fromthe Danish public institution,
Vaekstfonden carrying an interest rate of CIBOR plus 5% and the loan to be repaid on a quarterly basis instalment over
the period from 1 October 2021 until 1 October 2026. In the event the CBOR rate changes by 5% p.a. the interest
expenses charged to the Profit and Loss statemment would change by €12,110 p.a.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk also arises w hen the Group enters into transactions denominated in a currency other than their
functional currency (€). Gven the volume and magnitude of such transactions it is not considered sufficient to
warrant hedging the risk exposure.

The Group's nain foreign currency risk will be the short-term risk associated with accounts receivable and payable
denominated in currencies that were not the subsidiary's functional currency. The risk will arise on the difference in
the exchange rate betw een the time invoices were raised/received and the time invoices were settled/paid.

The Group's policy is, where possible, to settle liabilities denominated in their functional currency with the cash
generated fromtheir ow n operations in that currency.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow's of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primerily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency fromthe
Group's presentation currency) and the Group's net investments in foreign subsidiaries (translation risk).

The Group is aware of its non-Euro exposures but does not consider that at present a hedging program be required.
Raw meterials and capital expenditure are primarily in Euro (€) and US Dollars whilst the target revenue merket is Asia,
Europe and the USA. Any divergence fromthis would be considered by management with a view to putting cover in
place.

The Group has significant operations in the following currencies: Euro (€), Danish Kroner (DKK) and Chinese Yuan
(RVB).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal
repaynments on its debt instruments. I is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet
its liabilities w hen they become due.

The Board receives cash flow projections on a regular basis as well as information regarding cash balances. At the
end of the financial year, these projections indicated that the Group expected to have sufficient liquid resources to
meet its obligations.

The following table sets out the contractual meturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial
liabilities:

Between 3

Upto3 and 12 Between1 Between2 Over 5
months months and 2years and 5years years
€ € € € €

At 31 December 2023

Trada navahlac R72 22/ - - - -
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Other payables and accruals 472,810 - - - -
Loans 235,741 294,575 940,985 319,752 -
Total financial liabilities 1,280,785 294,575 940,985 319,752 -
At 31 December 2022

Trade payables 264,083 - - - -
Other payables and accruals - 451,402 - - -
Loans 18,030 139,084 426,944 1,263,518 -
Total financial liabilities 282,113 590,486 426,944 1,263,518 -

More details in regard to the line itens are included in note 24 and 25.
Capital Disclosures

The Group nonitors capital, which conprises all corrponents of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium merger
reserve and accunrulated retained earnings).

The Group's objectives when neintaining capital are:
« tosafeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
« to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services conmrensurately with the
level of risk.

The Group sets the anount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital structure and
mekes adjustents to it in the light of changes in econorric conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to meintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the number of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

8. Revenue

Revenue fromcontracts with customers:

Sale of products and installation

Rendering of services

Revenue

Revenue fromcontracts with custorrers is split of products as followss:

WindEye™
WindVision™
Rendering of services

Revenue

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
€ €
4,614,696 1,820,762
151,788 32,487
4,766,484 1,853,249
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
€ €
2,769,206
1,250,834
1,845,490 569,928
151,788 32,487
4,766,484 1,853,249

Contract liabilities of €251,678 (2022: €1,205,531) relates to performance obligation under contracts that have not yet
been conpleted and are expected to be met in 2024.

9. Loss from operations
Loss fromoperations is stated after:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
€ €
Staff costs (note 11) 1,476,189 1,253,715
Expensed research and development costs 1,023,801 633,451
Anrortisation’ 179,134 174,792
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment 29,407 2,474
Depreciation - right of use assets 28,738 -
Lease paynents 27,348 105,066
Other operating income (32,210) (32,260)
Renuneration received by the Group's auditor or
associates of the Group's auditor:
- Audit of parent cormpany 11,839 8,760
- Audit of consolidated financial statements 26,112 20,678
- Taxation conpliance services 1,175 1,128
Other auditors:
- Audit of overseas subsidiaries 34,991 16,233

1 Anortisation charges on the Group's intangible assets are recognised in the administrative expenses line itemin
the consolidated statement of corrprehensive incore.

10. Segment information



Operating segments are reported as reported to the chief operation decision meker.

The Group has one reportable segment being the sale of LIDAR Wind Measurement and therefore segmental results
and assets are disclosed in the consolidated incorme statement and consolidated statemment of financial position.

In 2023, 3 customers each accounted for more than 19% of the revenue (2022: one custone

rs). The

total amount of revenue from these customers amounted to €3,538,099 or 74% of the total revenue

(2022: €752,893 or 41% of the revenue).

Revenue by geographical location of custorrer:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

€ €

Europe 151,788 18,737
Anmericas 1,008,800 870,817
Australia 81,900 -
China 3,523,996 899,573
Asia (excluding China) - 64,122
Revenue 4,766,484 1,853,249

Geographical information
The parent conpany is based in the United Kingdom The information for the geographical area of non-current assets
is presented for the nmost significant area w here the Group has operations being Denmark.

As at 31 December  As at 31 December

2023 2022
€ €
Denmark 1,648,426 1,327,449

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, long termdeposits
and Right of Use assets.

11. Directors and employees

2023 2022
Average Year end Average Year end
Number of employees
excluding directors
Sales and Services 4 3 4 4
Research and developnent 14 15 12 1"
Production 5 6 5 5
Administration 4 5 3 3
27 29 24 23
Group 2023 2022
€ €
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,271,999 1,114,985
Social security costs 104,954 122,803
1,376,953 1,237,788
Warrant and Option costs 99,236 15,927
1,476,189 1,253,715
2023 2022
Company
€ €
Staff costs
Wages and fees 79,777 41,850
79,777 41,850

The Conpany has 5 enployees (2022: 4), all being the Directors of the Conpany.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of Group, and are considered to be directors of the conpany.

The value of all elerents of remuneration received by key management in the year was as follows:

Wages and  Fair value of

and t+ ~rncte

Pension Trtal
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contributions

1vian

fees
€ € €
Year ended 31 December 2023
Directors 79,777 - 79,777
Year ended 31 December 2022
Directors 41,850 - 41,850
12. Finance expense
Year Year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
€ €
Foreign exchange losses (59,791) (82,086)
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
anortised cost and lease interest (180,242) (148648)
Finance expense (240,033) (230,734)

13. Income tax

G

(b)

The tax
credit for the
year:

WK Corporation
tax

Foreign
Research and
Developrrent
tax credit

Tax
reconciliation
Loss on
ordinary
activities
before tax
Loss on
ordinary
activities at the
WK  standard
rate of
corporation tax
235% (2022
19%)

Hfects of:

Expenses non-
deductible for
tax purposes

Research and
Development
tax allowance

Adjustrent to
not recognized
deferred taxes
in previous
periods

Unrecognised
tax losses

Different tax
rates applied in
overseas
jurisdictions
Change in tax
rate

Exchange rate
differences

Year ended 31 December 2023
€

168,571

Year end
Decembet

21

(351,091)

(82,506

48,212

(76,805)

(15,202)

56,429

16,392
(129,459)
14,458

(24

[N

Research and
Developrrent
Tax credit for
the year

(168,571)




The tax credit is recognised as 22%. (2022: 22%) of the conpany's deficit that relates to research and development
costs. Conpanies in Denmerk, who conduct research and development and accordingly experience deficits can
apply to the Danish tax authorities for a payment equal to 22%. (2022: 22%) of deficits relating to research and
developrrent costs up to DKK 25 million.

(a) Deferred tax - Group

In view of the tax losses carried forward and other tining differences, there is a deferred tax asset of approximetely
€3,215,754(2022: €3,085,177) w hich has not been recognised in these Financial Statements, given uncertainty around
timing and availability of sufficient taxable profits in the relevant Conpany.

(b) Deferred tax - Company

In view of the tax losses carried forward and other differences there is a deferred tax asset of approximately
€600,688 (2022: €409,952) which has not been recognised in these Financial Staterrents, given uncertainty around
timing and availability of future profit against w hich the losses will be able to be used.

Al taxes recognized in the statement of Conprehensive income are denominated in DKK.

14. Loss per share

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic loss per share are as
follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

€ €

Loss for the year (175,431) (1,075,671)

Weighted average nun_ber of prdinary shares 68,361,444 55,963,110
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Basic loss and diluted, cents per share (0.3) (1.9)

There is no dilutive effect of the outstanding share options (note 27) as the dilution would reduce the loss per share.
15. Dividends

No dividends were proposed by the Group during the period under review (2022: €Ni).

16. Investment in Subsidiaries

Conpany €

At 1 January 2023 -
Capital contribution in the year -
Wite dow n investrent in subsidiary -
As at 31 December 2023 - =

The subsidiaries of Windar Photonics Fc are as follows:

Name Country of ~ Ownership Registered Office Nature of business
incorporation
Windar Denmerk ApS Denmark 100% Helgeshoej Allé 16-18 Holding corrpany
DK-2630 Taastrup
Windar Photonics A/S Denmark 100% Helgeshoej Allé 16-18 Develop and conmercialise
indirect DK-2630 Taastrup, wind turbine technology
Windar Photonics China 100% Room 403-03, Building #2 No. Commrercialise wind turbine
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. indrect 38 Debao Road, PRudong, technology
Shanghai

In 2022, the Conrpany established Windar Denmark ApS and owns 100% of the issued share capital of Windar
Denmark ApS (conprising shares of DKK 40,000 of 1 DKK each) with CVR nurmber 43615947.

In Noverrber 2022, the Conpany transferred all outstanding shares in Windar Photonics A/S (CVR nurrber 32157688)
to Windar Denmark ApS. Following the transaction, the existing share capital in Windar Photonics A/S of DKK
9,380,392 (conprising A Shares of DKK 5,737,800 of 1 DKK each and B Shares of DKK 3,642,592 of 1 DKK each)
were reduced to DKK 400,000 without any difference in share classes.

Windar Photonics A/S was incorporated on 28 Decerrber 2008 in Denmark and acquired by the Corrpany in August
2014.

Windar Photonics A/S owns 100% of the issued common stock of Windar Photonics (Shanghai) Co.Ltd. Windar
Photonics (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. was incorporated on 18 May 2016 in China with a registered fully paid capital of USD
200,000 of which USD 200,000 is paid in as per 31 Decenber 2023. (prior year registered and fully paid capital of USD
200,000)

17. Intangible assets
Development

projects
Group €
Cost
At 1 January 2022 4,020,113
Additions 297,540
Grants received (121,019)
Bxchange differences 74
At 31 December 2022 4,196,708
Additions - internally developed 493,436
Grants received (165,265)
Bxchange differences (9,318)

At 31 December 2023 4,515,561




Development

projects
€
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2022 2,824,846
Charge for the year 174,792
Bxchange differences 74
At 31 December 2022 2,999,712
Charge for the year 179,134
Bxchange differences (6,646)
At 31 December 2023 3,172,200
Net carrying value
At 1 January 2022 1,195,267
At 31 Decenrber 2022 1,196,996
At 31 December 2023 1,343,361

The Group has received public Research and Development Grants of €165,223 (2022: €121,019) in respect of the
capitalised research and development. At the end of the year 2 developrrent projects are ongoing w hich are
supported by public Research and Development Grants and outstanding grants which can be claimed in the coming
two years anount to €51,127 (2022: €209,754).

The development projects relate to the development of inproved performance and functionality of the Group's product
offerings. Measurement of the development projects are based on expected contributions to forward looking business

plans and budgets.
18. Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant
and equipment

Group €
Cost

At 1 January 2022 228,222
Additions 107,456
Disposed -
Exchange differences 45
At 31 December 2022 335,723
Additions 254,79
Disposed -
Exchange differences -
At 31 December 2023 590,289
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2022 225,799
Charge for the year 2,992
Disposed -
Exchange differences (51)
At 31 December 2022 228,740
Charge for the year 30,165
Disposed -
Bxchange differences 585
At 31 December 2023 259,490
Net carrying value

At 1 January 2022 2,423
At 31 Decenber 2022 106,983
At 31 Decenrber 2023 330,799

19. Right of use assets

Right of use
assets
Group €
Cost
At 1 January 2022 -
Additions -
At 31 December 2022 -
Additions 84,743
At 31 December 2023 84,743
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2022 -
Charge for the year _
At 31 December 2022 -
Charge for the year 28,738

At 31 December 2023 28738



—_ ——

Net carrying value

At 1 January 2022

At 31 Decerrber 2022

At 31 December 2023 56,005
20. Inventory
Group
As at As at
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
€ €
Raw material 414,160 382,027
Work in progress 63,355 294,852
Finished goods 241,468 22,357
Inventory 718,983 699,236
The cost of inventory sold and recognised as an expense during the year was €2,381,571 (2022: €897,017)
21. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
As ;1t As at As :,?: As at
December 31 Decer2r(t))2e2r December 31 Decerzr(t))éazr
2023 € 2023 €
€ €
Trade receivables 546,273 389,652 - -
Receivables fromrelated parties - - 1,091,896 183,579
Tax receivables 151,015 218,928 - -
Other receivables 135,088 197,496 12,512 21,300
Total trade and other receivables 832,376 806,076 1,104,408 204,879
Classified as follows:
Current Portion 832,376 806,076 1,104,408 204,879

22, Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents cornrprise the following balances with original

meturity less than 90 days:

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31 December  31Decenber 31December 31 Decenber
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Cash at bank 152,180 1,404,073 - 960,237

As at year end, the Conpany had bank overdrafts of €426 (2022: €Nil) which is presented in the liabilities section of

the Conpany Stateent of Financial Position.

23. Notes supporting statement of cash flows

Non-current loans Qurrent loans and

and borrowings borrowings Total
€ € €
As at 1 January 2022 1,371,076 372,934 1,744,010
Repaynent of loans - (93,686) (93,686)
Loans and borrowings classified as non-current in previous period _
becorring current in this period (157,114) 157,114
Accrued interests on non-current loans 103,247 - 103,247
Loans and borrowings classified as current in previous period _ _ _
beconing non-current in this period
New long-termborrowings in the period 373,055 (279,248) 93,807
Foreign exchange rate differences 198 - 198
As at 31 December 2022 1,690,462 157,114 1,847,576




Repayment of loans - (73,415) (73,415)
Loans and borrowings classified as non-current in previous period _
becorring current in this period (530,785) 530,785
Accrued interests on non-current loans 128,020 - 128,020
Loans not paid on schedule - (83,699) (83,699)
As at 31 December 2023 1,287,697 530,785 1,818,482
The Conrpany does not have any long- or short-termloans or borrowings.
24. Trade and other payables
Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 Decerrber 31December 31 Decenber
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Trade payables 572,234 264,083 43,627 108,452
Bank overdrafts - - 426 -
Other payables and accruals 368,607 410,600 72,423 29,317
Payables to Drectors 104,203 40,802 104,203 40,802
Current portion of Growth Fund and Covid-19 loans 530,785 157,114 - -
Lease liabilties 25,648 - - -
Contract liabilities 251,678 1,205,531 - -
Total trade and other payables 1,853,155 2,078,130 220,679 178,571
Classified as follows:
Current Portion 1,853,155 2,078,130 220,679 178,571

There is no material difference between the net book value and the fair values of current trade and other payables

due to their short-termnature.

25. Borrowings

The carrying value and fair value of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Group
Carrying and Fair value

As at 31 December As at 31 Decerrber

2023 2022
€ €
Loans
Growth Fund and COVID-19 loans 1,818,482 1,847,576
Current portion of Growth Fund and COVID-19 loans
(530,785) (157,114)
Total non-current financial liabilities measured at amortised
costs 1,287,697 1,690,462

As announced in 2020, terms for the borrowing was renewed during the year whereafter the interest rate was
reduced to 7% p.a. and the loan to be repaid in quarterly instalments over the period from 1 January, 2022 until 1
October, 2026. The loan agreement was further amended in 2022 whereby interests payable until Septenrber 2022
were further accrued to the loan principal hereafter the loan principal to be repaid in quarterly instalments over the
period from1 October 2023 until 1 July 2027. In Noverrber 2022 the loan was transferred to WWindar Denmark ApS.

A new Covid-19 loan was further obtained during 2020 from Vaekstfonden which carries an interest rate of CBOR
plus 5% p.a. and to be repaid in quarterly instalments over the period from 1 October 2021 until 1 October 2026.

In 2020, relation with the changes to the existing Grow th Fund borrowing and the new offered loan, the lender now
has security of the assets of Windar Photonics A/S, subsidiary undertaking, to an amount of DKK12.6m In relation to
the additional Covid-19 loan the following terms and conditions are in place:

e Thereis an early exit fee set at a maxinmum DKK600k

. No dividends or corporate bond interest will be paid. Dividend distributions from Windar Photonics A/S to
Windar Photonics FLC has been restricted until full repayment of the borrowing to the Growth Fund.

e No payment of inter-conpany debts fromWindar Photonics A/S. Windar Photonics FLC has entered into an
agreenent to resign from repayments of any outstanding anmounts owned by Windar Photonics A/S to
Windar Photonics FLC until full repayment of the borrowing to the Grow th Fund.

. The loan is secured up to a value of DKK12.6M on certain assets of Windar Photonics A/S, subsidiary

undertaking.
Both loans are denonrinated in Danish Kroner.

The Conpany had no borrowings.

26. Lease liabilities



Group

As at As at

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

€ €

Lease liabilities - current portion 25,648 -
Lease liabilities - non-current portion 31,711 -
Lease liabilities 57,359 -

The total cash outflow in respect of lease liabilities was €99,903 s(2022; €Nl) w hile the related interest expenses
recognised in the year was €2,868 (2022; €Nll).

Future lease payments are due as follows:

Lease Present

payments Interest value

2023 2023 2023

€ € €

Within one year 30,848 (2,868) 27,980

Within two to five years 46,272 (4,337) 41,935

More than five years - - -

Total lease payments 77,120 (7,205) 69,915
27. Share capital

Authorised € Authorised €

2023 2023 2022 2022

Shares at beginning of reporting period 68,361,444 834,771 54,595,524 675,664

Issue of share capital - - 13,765,920 159,107

Shares at end of reporting period 68,361,444 834,771 68,361,444 834,771

Number of Number of
shares issued € shares issued €
and fully paid 2023  and fully paid 2022
2023 2022

Shares at 1 January 2022 68,361,444 834,771 54,595,524 675,664

Issue of shares for cash - - 13,765,920 159,107

Shares at 31 December 2023 68,361,444 834,771 68,361,444 834,771

At 31 Decenrber 2023 the share capital conprises 68,361,444 shares of 1 pence each.

Share options
Share options are granted to enployees.

During the year no share options lapsed, and 2,256,956 new share options were granted during the year.

Share options issued in 2017, 2019, 2021 and 2023 are valued using the Black-Scholes pricing nodel and no
performance conditions are included in the fair value calculations. The options were issued at a strike price of 100p in
respect of share options granted in 2017 and 2019 and a strike price of 40p for options granted in 2021. In 2023
1,056,956 option were issued at a strike price of 21.85p and 1,200,000 at 30.0p. All share options granted with a third
vesting on each anniversary for the first three years whereafter the options have a 10-year life. The price of the
share at the time of issue used equals the actual market price of the share at issue. The risk-free rate was 4%. The
expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the AIM market over the last three years and is estimated to be
90%.

The average share price during the year was 33.48 pence (2022: 12.67 pence). At the year end the Conpany had the
follow ing options outstanding:

Number of options
DeAt 31be At 31 Exercise
'Z)?Z r Granted Lapsed December price (£ Exercise date
2023 pence)
Options 1,021,667 2,256,596 - 3,278,263 40.50 16/11/18 to 15/06/36
1,021,667 2,256,5% - 3,278,263

The nurrber of share options exercisable at 31 Decenmber 2023 are 1,448,750 (2022: 803,287).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 Decentber 2023 is 10.99
years (2022: 8.92 years).

28. Reserves

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity

Reserve Description and purpose

Share prenmium Anount subscribed for share capital in excess of nonrinal
value.

Merger reserve - Group Represents the difference between the consideration paid

for the acquisition of Windar Photonics A/S by the Conrpany
and the net book value of the assets and liabilities acquired.



Merger reserve - Conpany Represents the difference between the fair value and the
nominal value of the shares issued for the acquisition of

Windar Photonics A/S.

Foreign currency reserve Gains and losses on the retranslating the net assets fromthe
functional currencies to the reporting currency of €.

Retained earnings All other net gains and losses and transactions with owners

(e.g. dividends) not recognised elsew here.

29. Short term leases

The Conpany has one leasing commitrrent with maturity under 3 years. The conmitrent has a value of €60,761.

30. Warranty provision

2023 2022

€ €

Provision at the beginning of reporting period 45,774 36,150
Provision charged to the profit and loss account (20,185) 9,620
Utilised in year - -
Foreign exchange rate novements (96) 4
25,493 45774

The Group typically provides a two-year warranty period to customers on products sold. Warranty
expenses/(income) charged to the Statemment of Conrprehensive Income anmounted to €(20,185) (2022: 9,620)
corresponding to a warranty cost percentage of NI % (2022: Ni%) relative to the prior two years revenue. However,
due to the early business stage of the Group and the uncertainty following this the Group has adopted a policy to
accrue a 4% provision based on the prior two years deliveries calculated with the cost of goods sold at the end of the
period.

31. Holiday allowance provision

2023 2022

€ €

Provision at the beginning of reporting period 134,734 131,877
Increase holiday allow ance provision in year - -
Accrued interest 3,804 2,857
138,538 134,734

32. Related Party Transactions

Jargen Korsgaard Jensen and Johan Blach Petersen are directors and shareholders of Wavetouch Denmerk A/S
(Wavetouch) and OPDI Technologies A/S (OFDI). Wavetouch has during the year rented office space from Windar
Photonics A/S, the amount payable during the year to Windar was €32,210 (2022: €32,261). At the end of the year,
receivable anounts were outstanding from Wavetouch €9,581 (2022: €81,628). At the end of the year, there were
amounts outstanding to the directors as follows: Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen €nil (2022: €416), Johan Blach Petersen
€6,850 (2022: € 6,850), David George Lis €24,354 (2022: €nil), Andrew Richardson €11,275 (2022: €nil), Paul Hodges
€28,188 (2022: €nil) and Seren Heffner €33,536 (2022: €33,536).

Intercompany transactions

At 31 December 2023, there exist an interconpany loan between Windar Photonics PLC and its directly or
indirectly held subsidiaries Windar Denmark ApS and Windar Photonics A/S.

Windar Photonics FLC has a receivable at €1,091,896 (2022: €183,579) and interest added during 2023 armmounts
to €47,417 (2022: €3,136) with Windar Photonics A/S and Windar Denmark ApS.

The interest rate for 2023 is Bank of England base rate + 2.5% p.a. (2022: Base rate +2.5% p.a.).

33. Financial Instruments

a) Assets
Group Group Company Conpany
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Trade & Other Receivables 546,273 389,652 1,104,408 183,579
Cash & Cash Fquivalents 152,180 1,404,073 - 960,237
Total 698,453 1,793,725 1,104,408 1,143,816

Assets in the analysis above are all categorised as 'other financial assets at anortised cost' for the Group and
Corrpany

b) Liabilties
Group Group Company Corrpany
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Trade & Other Payables 783,901 470,928 220,679 178,571
Loans 1,818,483 1,847,576 - -
Lease liability 57,359 - - -
Total 2,659,743 2,318,504 220,679 178,571

Liabilities in the analysis above are all categorised as 'other financial liabilities at anortised cost' for the Group and
Conpany

24. Controlling Parties

There is no ultimate controlling party of the Conpany.



34. Post balance sheet events and outstanding lawsuits

On 2™ January 2024, the Group issued 465,000 shares at an average subscription price of 22p per share in
satisfaction of fees due to Non-Bxecutive Directors in respect of 2023.

On 8 April 2024, the Group conpleted a Facing to issue 12,631,426 new ordinary shares at a price of 35p price per
share raising £4.42 million pre-costs. The purpose of the share issue was to provide working capital to support
anticipated growth, continued new product development and increase balance sheet strength to support
strengthening of the supplier and customer bases.

There are no outstanding law suits.

WINDARPHOTONICS ALC
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

This docurrent is inportant and requires your immrediate attention. If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of the
proposals referred to in this document or as to the action you should take, you should seek your own advice from
your stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser. If you have sold or otherwise transferred all

your shares in Windar Photonics plc, please forward this document, together with any accorpanying documents,
to the purchaser or transferee or to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these
docurrents to the person who how holds the shares.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting (the "AGM') of Windar Photonics Fc (the "Conpany”)
will be held at The Heron, 5 Moor Lane, London, EC2Y 9AP at 10.00 a.m on 5t August 2024 for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, passing the resolutions below .

The Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 Decerrber 2023, Notice of AGMand a formof Proxy will be
posted to shareholders and shortly available on the Corrpany's w ebsite at https://www .w indarphotonics.conm/

Resolution 7 will be proposed as a special resolution. All other resolutions will be proposed as ordinary resolutions.
As Ordinary Resolutions:

To receive and adopt the Conpany's annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 Decenber 2023 together with
the Directors' report and the auditors' report on those accounts.

To re-elect David George Lis, who retires by rotation pursuant to the articles of association of the Conpany and
who, being eligible, offers hinself for re-election as a Director

To re-elect Gavin Manson, who retires by rotation pursuant to the articles of association of the Conpany and w ho,
being eligible, offers hinself for re-election as a Director

To appoint Gravita Audit Linited, as auditors of the Conpany to hold office fromthe conclusion of this meeting until
the conclusion of the next general meeting at w hich the accounts are laid before the meeting

To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the auditors.

6. That, in substitution for all subsisting authorities to the extent unused, the Directors be generally and
unconditionally authorised for the purpose of section 551 of the Corrpanies Act 2006 to exercise all the
powers of the Conpany to allot ordinary shares in the Conpany and grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert
any security into such ordinary shares (such ordinary shares and rights to subscribe for or to convert any
security into ordinary shares being relevant securities) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £243,864, with
such authorisation to expire upon the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general meeting and 30 June
2025 (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Conpany prior to or on that date) after the date of this
resolution (save that the Cormpany may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might
require relevant securities allotted, or rights to be granted, after such expiry and the directors may allot
relevant securities, in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authorisation conferred hereby had not
expired).

As a Special Resolution

7. That, subject to the passing of resolution 6 above and in substitution for all subsisting authorities to the extent
unused, the Directors be generally empowered pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Conpanies Act 2006
(the 'CA 2006'") to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 CA 2006) pursuant to the authority referred
to in resolution 5, as if section 561(1) CA 2006 did not apply to any such allotrent, provided that the power
was:

1. limited to the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of equity securities:
a. toordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their existing holdings;
and
b. to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the
directors otherwise consider necessary.

2. limited to the allotment of equity securities up to an aggregate nonrinal amount of 243,864, and shall
expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general meeting and 30 June 2025 (unless
renewed, varied or revoked by the Corrpany prior to or on that date), save that the Corrpany, may
before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as if the pow er hereby conferred had not expired.



Dated June 29, 2024
By Order of the Board

Jorgen Korsgaard Jensen
Director
Registered Address: 3 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AQ Registered Nunber: 09024532
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